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Management Discussion and Analysis

The board of directors (the “Board”) of REXLot Holdings Limited (the
“Company"”) is pleased to present the annual results of the Company,
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities (together, the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in
lottery system and games development business and distribution and
marketing of lottery products in China.

The China Lottery Market comprises two lotteries, namely, the China
Welfare Lottery and the China Sports Lottery. The Group provides
services to both lotteries.

Lottery Business

The Group’s lottery business can be broadly divided into two divisions,
namely, System and Games Development Business (“SGDB") Division
and Distribution and Marketing Business ("DMB") Division.

Turnover of the lottery business for the year increased by 27.8% to
HK$1,609,935,000 (2009: HK$1,260,072,000), accounting for 99.7%
of the total turnover. Results from this segment recorded a growth of
54.5% to HK$710,980,000 (2009: HK$460,327,000).

China Lottery Market

China Lottery Market continued to record a strong growth in 2010
with sales of approximately RMB166.2 billion (2009: RMB132.5
billion), up 25% year over year. Welfare Lottery accounted for about
58% (RMB96.8 billion) of total lottery sales while Sports Lottery
accounted for about 42% (RMB69.4 billion).

During the year, Welfare Computer Ticket Games (“CTG") accounted
for about 75% of total Welfare Lottery sales; Welfare Scratch Cards
was about 15% and Video Lottery Terminals (“VLT") took about 10%.

Welfare CTG sales registered a healthy growth in 2010, up 12%
year over year to RMB73 billion. The successful marketing campaign
for Dual Colour Ball game started in October was instrumental in
boosting the Welfare CTG sales in fourth quarter, during which
Welfare CTG sales increased by 15% period-on-period.

Welfare Scratch Cards sales recorded a strong growth of 56% during
the year to RMB14.5 billion. The increasing popularities on the higher
face value tickets launched since the end of first quarter contributed
to the growth at such an impressive pace.

EEENWMRIMN

HERPRERBR AT (r$’\TJ)§$A(F§$
g)MRAZHARAA BB A A &R E G &
(£ 18 (HK%.J)EQ@:E—%_EEi‘F—H =+—H
IFHBFE 2 FHE-

EBEOERRE
REIEEFEE - NEE T ERN P B ER R R ol
MEXBLREEERNEZRETSER-

PEEETSAEMAYE MPEBMNER LD EE
BRER -AEEEMBEVREBRURS -
EREE

AEBEZHREBABS RMEDE - ED/\,LEﬁiZZﬁEX
RBEB ((RREBERREERD A REX
SEB ([RXEMSZER]) DAk

HEEBREANZEEBEELN27.8% %
1,609,935, ooo,%yz (ZZZ 1,4 :1,260,072,000/8
TL) EBREET Z99.7% cZ D BEB L RS45%
%710,980,0008 7t ( =TT J14 460,327,000/
TT) e

PEXEMNS
:P¥ﬁ%$i%m:$—;f¢%@f?@€§@bi%fﬁ’ﬁﬁ
BEHBARE1662BT (ST NF: ARK,325
Br) BFERS% BAXELERLEEED
58% ( ARM968187T) - MEEA K ERIMEX42% (A
R#694E7T) °

FA BYEMEEBNERZEHEERENTS% B
FEFREBR15% P BAERNEL10% °

BYERMEHEER T BRGRETE
i‘Eu%i/\E“ﬂBm %E FHhOoRtARMD
EE@ITLEJZA‘%/EEMH”‘EXI CAPRERYEME

EHER CUER BREMRHEEEERHE
§15%°

BEHAEZHERRBTRYER  FREMN6%E
ARBIASE T -BF " FTRAELEERSNARR
BB THBHEHEARAREERNREZ

— o0

Annual Report 2010 =ZB—ZFF{

5



6

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

VLT sales reached RMB9.3 billion and regained the momentum of
growth after regulator had approved the launch of new games in
different regions in the country.

In respect of Sports Lottery, Sports CTG accounted for about 76% of
total Sports Lottery sales and Sports Scratch Cards took about 24%.

Sales of Sports CTG, including Single Match Games (“SMG"),
increased by 27% year over year to approximately RMB53 billion. This
growth was partially attributed to the growing popularity of SMG
stimulated by the South Africa World Cup which was held in June
2010. Total sales of SMG was estimated to be about RMB6 billion in
2010 (2009: RMB130 million).

Sports Scratch Cards sales in 2010 reached RMB16.4 billion,
registered an increase of 8% when compared to 2009. Sales of Sports
Scratch Cards, while continued to be strong, were impacted due to

the competition from Welfare Scratch Cards.

System and Games Development Business

During the year under review, the Group’s SGDB Division has
continued to deliver solid earnings and the business development has
sustained good momentum. Our SGDB Division is an active participant
in the provision of systems and equipments for both CTG and Scratch

Cards products in China.

Welfare CTG Business

The Group’s Welfare CTG business is principally conducted through
Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd (“Sinodata”), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group which the Company owns 89.84%.
Sinodata is the leading system and equipment supplier for the Welfare
CTG market in China. During the year under review, it successfully
maintained its market shares in providing services to 16 lottery
provinces in China.

In 2010, Welfare CTG continued to maintain its leading position
as the largest segment in the China Lottery Market, accounting for
about 44% of the total lottery sales in China. Given its respectable
weight in the lottery market, we believe the stable growth of this
segment will give positive contribution to the Group’s revenue base.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Welfare Scratch Cards Business

Welfare Scratch Cards sales registered a very substantial growth in
2010, up 56% to RMB14.5 billion. The roll out of Welfare Scratch
Cards with higher face value since the end of first quarter, coupled
with the launch of other theme based tickets, had proven to be

instrumental in pushing up the Scratch Cards sales.

The Group is the exclusive system and equipment supplier of Welfare
Scratch Cards validation in China and the system implementation
is done through our 50%-owned Beijing Guard Libang Technology
Co Ltd (“Guard Libang”). Guard Libang is a 50:50 joint venture
with Scientific Games Corporation (“Scientific Games”), the world’s
leading instant lottery system and validation Company. Our strategic
partnership with Scientific Games enables us to bring its expertise and
technology know-how to the Scratch Cards market in China.

The Group is also involved in Scratch Cards printing business and its
printing facilities are located at Shijiazhuang, the Provincial Capital
of Hebei Province. Through a cooperative venture with Shijiazhuang
Offset Printing House, one of three entities authorized to print for
the Welfare Scratch Cards programs, our Group is contributing to the
development of Welfare Scratch Cards in China.

Sports CTG Business

The Group’s Sports CTG business involved the sales of CTG machines
to the Provincial Sports Lottery Centres across China. Apart from
serving the traditional CTG segment, the Group also focused on the
development of high frequency games running on CTG based or
electronic platforms and the deployment of system and equipment in
support of the SMG roll out in China.

During the year under review, sales of CTG machines were primarily
generated by the collective demand of normal replacement and SMG
roll out. The Group is poised to capture the business opportunities in
these areas as we believe they will make significant contribution to

the success of the Group’s business in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

Distribution and Marketing Business

Taking advantage of the successful performance attained in SGDB
Division, the Group had commenced the DMB Division in late 2008
by taking the first steps in establishing a physical distribution network
under the cooperation distribution model. Subsequently, the Group
launched its mobile lottery business which heralded the Group’s entry
into electronic lottery platform. The Group has also been playing
an active role in setting up dedicated franchised shops for SMG in
supporting the launch of SMG in China.

Although the DMB Division is a relatively new business unit of the
Group, it has already demonstrated its strong growth potential and
great significance of lottery distribution channels to China Lottery
Market. After 2 years of investment and network building, the DMB
Division has become one of the major distribution channels for various
lottery products in China Lottery Market and it has started to make
meaningful contribution to the Group during the year under review.

In October, the Ministry of Finance issued the Provisional Measures for
the Administration of the Distribution of Lottery Tickets on Internet
and Telephone. We believe the initiatives represent a major step
forward in clearing the uncertainty and enabling the Group, as a
key participant in the industry, to capitalize on its edge to foster the
development of electronic lottery distribution channels. The Group
will continue to consolidate its comprehensive distribution platform
for the expanding spectrum of lottery products in China.

Cooperation Distribution Business

The Group has been dedicated to develop its cooperative distribution
business model since late 2008. Under the cooperative model,
we focus on with our distribution channel partners, entities and
organizations that already had a widely diversified and recognized
retail network. Our partners include China Post, PetroChina, Sinopec,
China Resources, other major supermarket and convenience store
chains.

Single Match Games Business

The Group has continued to expand its footprint by setting up
dedicated franchised SMG shops across key provinces in China as well
as setting up related supporting 24-hours Call Center in Guangdong
for our SMG customers during the year under review. As at the end of
2010, the Group has presence in 7 provinces. Following the successful
launch of SMG in May 2009, the 2010 South Africa World Cup has
quickened the rapid growth of SMG. Total sales of SMG in 2010 was
estimated to be around RMB6 billion compared to RMB130 million in
2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Mobile Lottery Business and the Electronic Lottery Platform

In strict adherence to the regulatory guidelines established by
the supervising authorities, we started our mobile based lottery
distribution operation in 2009. In 2010, we have focused on fortifying
our position in mobile lottery business in the existing provinces on the
one hand and expanding our business geographically on the other
hand. Currently, we have signed contracts and have been authorized
to roll out the mobile lottery business in 7 provinces/regions in China
and we have already completed in 5 of them. We expect the number
of users to increase over time upon our expansion into different
provinces/regions and deepening our penetration into existing
provinces/regions. China Mobile is our major roll out partner for the

mobile lottery operation.

Being the forerunner in the introduction of new technologies
and systems for the smooth and reliable development of lottery
equipments and risk management system and distribution channels
in China, our Group has commenced cautiously the development of a
comprehensive Electronic Lottery Platform (“ELP”). The ELP comprises
a back-end system serving as the customer management system and a
front-end application that is compatible with various lottery products
and distribution channels including lottery terminal at physical shop,
call center, mobile phone and the internet. During the year, the Group
has achieved significant breakthrough in the development of ELP and
will continue its efforts in supporting the launch of electronic lottery
distribution in China.

Financial Business

During the year under review, turnover of the financial business
decreased by 63% to HK$4,393,000 (2009: HK$11,997,000),
accounting for 0.3% of the total turnover and recorded segment
loss of HK$4,875,000 (2009: HK$774,000). The Group will continue
to divest from its non core business and focus on the promising
core lottery operations. Active measures have been taken to look
for opportunities in releasing further resources from this business

segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

Outlook

China Lottery Market has grown leaps and bounds and achieved
a string of notable successes during the “Eleventh Five-Year Plan”
period of China from 2006 to 2010. 2011 is a milestone year for the
China Lottery Market to lay the foundations for current and future
growth. Since the first national regulation on lottery has taken into
effect in 2009, it has created a healthy and balanced context for
bringing the industry and lottery community together to help shaping

the growth of China Lottery Market.

The Group will continue to provide comprehensive lottery solutions
and deepen our penetration into the whole value chain of the China
lottery industry from lottery system architect upstream to distribution
of lottery products downstream. During the year, we are gratifying to
witness the encouraging performance of DMB Division and its leading
market position. We are convinced that the well established SGDB
Division and the DMB Division, as our key growth driver, will continue

to deliver meaningful contributions to the Group’s earnings.

Solid Revenue Growth Based on Strong Fundamentals

Looking ahead, our SGDB will continue to provide a solid foundation
for the business development of the Group, in particular the DMB
development. In addition, given its resilience in nature, it will also
enhance the Group’s ability to weather through challenges ahead if

any.

Building on the long and successful track record in supporting the
development of Welfare CTG in China, the Group will continue to
deliver its professional solutions and excellent services to the 16
lottery provinces and take advantage of opportunities to expand our
presence in the Welfare CTG market by extending our services to
other lottery provinces in China.

With continual enhancement and expansion of our Scratch Cards
printing capabilities, we are well prepared to capture the emerging
market growth of Welfare Scratch Cards through the introduction of
world-class state-of-the-art printing technologies. We are confident
that the printing facilities upgrade can better accommodate the
various designs of high quality scratch cards.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

For the Sports CTG business, other than the traditional CTG terminals,
we will devote more resources to the development of system and
terminals in support of the increasing varieties of games offerings by
the Sports Lottery authorities in China.

Positioned for Sustained Growth through Seizure of Enormous
Market Opportunities

We are thrilled to observe several of our new growth drivers in DMB
Division are taking shape and we see a lot of opportunities to build on
these wins.

In the year ahead, we strongly believe that the strengths of lottery
innovation, in particular the development of new distribution channels
and lottery products, will ultimately bring the China Lottery Market
into the next wave of growth. The issuance of provisional measures
on mobile and internet lottery distribution channels has demonstrated
the aspiration of the China lottery authorities to establish a balanced
and well regulated context for the sustainable development of lottery
industry which will provide a reliable and sustainable source of funds
for the development of the good causes in China.

In order to maximize the benefits of electronic distribution channels,
it is envisaged that a well developed customer and risk management
system is complementary to the healthy development of the whole
China Lottery Market. As such, the Group has committed to maintain
its leading and unparalleled position in this dynamic industry by
introducing new technologies and systems for serving this purpose.

The Group's cooperation distribution business has fortified its leading
position in the Scratch Cards distribution in China. We will continue
to expand the network through adding more new POS in selected

prime locations in China.

With respect to SMG, the growth potential is enormous in China,
according to market estimates. The South Africa World Cup has
proven to be a catalyst for the growth in SMG sales and enhanced
its development in China. It is widely believed that as the market
for SMG matures in the coming couple of years, SMG may become
the single largest games category of all lottery products in China by
lottery size and revenue generation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

Our Group will play an active role in supporting the development
of SMG in China. The Group believes that SMG will be one of the
key drivers to our revenue growth in the future as the SMG business
segment takes shape and develops over the course of the coming few
years.

As a major participant in China’s Lottery industry, we are not only
confident and optimistic about the future prospects of our Group, but
are also confident that the Welfare and Sports Lotteries in China will
continue to make significant contributions for the good causes which
benefit the general public in China. The Group has accomplished key
structural steps in making good progress against these objectives.
We will continue our efforts in the furthering of such good causes
in China through the careful and diligent execution of its planned
strategies.

We believe these developments, together with the solid fundamentals
of our diversified business model, position the Group for another year
of growth in 2011.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Result

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$1,614,328,000 (2009: HK$1,272,069,000),
representing an increase of 26.9% over that of the last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the Group's lottery business
in China which achieved a turnover of HK$1,609,935,000 (2009:
HK$1,260,072,000).

Profit attributable to equity holders for the year was HK$636,016,000
(2009: HK$424,581,000). The earnings per share was 8.26 cents
(2009: 5.66 cents). Fully diluted earnings per share was 8.23 cents
(2009: 5.63 cents).

The Board recommended a final dividend of 0.56 HK cent per share
(2009: 0.43 HK cent per share). Together with the paid interim
dividend of 0.35 HK cent per share (2009: 0.18 HK cent per share),
the Group's total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010
amounts to 0.91 HK cent per share (2009: 0.61 HK cent per share).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Funding

At 31 December 2010, the Group's total equity amounted to
HK$3,774,108,000 as compared to HK$3,446,671,000 at the end of
the previous year.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had cash reserves of approximately
HK$294,214,000 (2009: HK$353,158,000), which included
approximately HK$14,687,000 (2009: HK$27,029,000) of clients’
funds that were kept in designated segregated bank accounts.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2010 was 2.95% (2009:
2.33%). The gearing ratio was derived by dividing the aggregate of
bank borrowings by the amount of shareholders’ equity. The liquidity
ratio of the Group, represented by a ratio between current assets over
current liabilities, was 738% (2009: 601%).

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December
2010 of HK$111,466,000 (2009: bank and other borrowings of
HK$61,657,000 and HK$18,533,000 respectively). The borrowings
were denominated in Renminbi and interest bearing at prevailing
commercial lending rates. The Group’s land and building were
pledged to secure the bank borrowings. We expect that all these
borrowings will be repaid by internal generated funds.

Taking into account the financial resources available to the Group
including internally generated funds and available banking facilities,
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present
requirements.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s land and building with
total market value of approximately HK$62,090,000 (2009:
HK$48,864,000) and the Group's bank deposits of HK$45,302,000
(2009: HK$16,875,000) were pledged to banks to secure the bank
borrowings granted to the Group. At 31 December 2010, the Group's
listed investment belonging to clients with total market value of
approximately HK$7,322,000 (2009: HK$5,204,600) was pledged to a
bank to secure the undrawn banking facilities.

Share Capital
177,500,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each were issued and allotted
during the year upon exercise of share options granted by the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Company’s
capital structure during the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate Risk and Interest Rate
Risk

The Group’'s assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi. The Group
did not enter into any foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge
against exchange rates fluctuations. Foreign exchange risk arising
from the normal course of operations is considered to be minimal and
the management will closely monitor the fluctuation in the currency
and take appropriate actions when condition arises.

In terms of the interest rate risk exposures, the Group does not have
any significant interest rate risk as both the borrowings of the Group

and the interest rates currently remain at low levels.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
The Group had no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Human Resources
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 1,404 employees.

The Group remunerated its employee mainly based on the individual's
performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as
individual performance.

The Group will continue to emphasise on staff training and total
quality management to better prepare its staff for the upcoming

changes and challenges in the market and industry.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere thanks to
all our shareholders, business partners and professional advisors for
their support throughout the year, and to our management and staff

for their ongoing dedication to the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN How Chung, Victor, aged 50, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 4 July 2002. Mr Chan is responsible
for the strategic development and overall operations of the Group.
He holds a LLB degree and is a professionally qualified accountant.
He has over 25 years of experience in corporate restructurings and
reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, primary and secondary
capital raisings, wealth management and corporate finance.

BOO Chun Lon, aged 46, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 14 September 2004 and is responsible for the
development of the Group. He holds a bachelor degree of arts from
the University of Winnipeg in Canada. Prior to joining the Company,
he has been the marketing manager of Great Tone Limited, an

international manufacturing company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YUEN Wai Ho, aged 51, obtained a master in business administration
from the University of Bath in England in 1988. Mr Yuen is a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
& Administrators. Mr Yuen has more than 25 years of experience
in auditing and commercial fields, 10 of which were working in
multinational companies. He is currently a partner of a firm of
certified public accountants.

CHOW Siu Ngor, aged 55, is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr
Chow graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981
with an honors degree in Social Science. He then obtained an honors
degree in Laws from the University of Birmingham in England in 1987.
Mr Chow was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong
Kong in 1990 and has been in private practice since then. Currently,
Mr Chow is a Partner of King & Wood, Solicitors. Mr Chow also serves
as an independent non-executive director of CCT Tech International
Limited and a non-executive director of China Gamma Group Limited,
both are listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEAEEE (H)

LEE Ka Lun, aged 56, is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in UK. Mr Lee has over 25 years
experience in banking and auditing. He had been the Deputy Chief
Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc, Hong Kong Branch and Regional
Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations in
Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience on corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. Mr Lee also serves as an independent non-
executive director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong
namely Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and Yuexiu
Property Company Limited. Mr Lee also served as an independent
non-executive director of Denway Motors Limited, a company which
had been withdrawn its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited after privatization in August 2010, from 30 June 1999 to 26
August 2010.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WOO Ming Wah, aged 40, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. Mr Woo is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Woo has over 14 years of
experience in the field of auditing and financial management.

NG Yuen Yee, aged 41, is the Company Secretary of the Company.
Ms Ng is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She has over 18 years of experience in the field
of company secretaryship.

YAU Sheung Nei, aged 38, is the Director - Corporate Development
and Investor Relations of the Group. Ms Yau has over 15 years of
experience in the field of investor relations and equity research. Prior
to joining the Group, she had worked for a number of Hong Kong
listed red chip companies and a global asset management company.
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ZHANG Jing, aged 56, is the President and Chief Operating Officer
(Lottery Operation) of the Group and the Chief Representative (Beijing
Representation Office). Mr Zhang graduated from Yunnan University
and has over 30 years experience in governmental affairs and
corporate management. He has been involved in the modernization of
lottery in China since 2003 and later involved in the development of

lottery business of the Group.

ZHANG Beiguang, aged 41, is the Executive Vice President (Lottery
Operation and Overseas Markets) of the Group. Mr Zhang graduated
from the Peking University with a bachelor degree of arts. He has over

15 years experience in strategic development and management.

WANG Xiangbo, aged 49, is the general manager of Beijing Guard
Libang Technology Co Ltd (“Guard Libang”). He joined Guard Libang
since 2004. Mr Wang graduated from the Hunan University with
a master degree in Business Administration. Prior to joining Guard
Libang, he was appointed as vice president of China Southern Airlines
Power Machinery Company in 1993 and was responsible for sales. He
specialized in large scale operation management and international
venture, especially in nationwide marketing management. He was the
general manager of Tianjin Nankai Co Ltd, a listed company in China
between 2000 to 2003.

XU Sifan, aged 52, is the director and the general manager of
Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd (“Sinodata”) and is responsible
for the overall operational management of Sinodata. Mr Xu is an
engineer, registered architect and holds a MBA degree. He was
formerly the official engineer and the principal of Jiangxi Jingde
Residential Design Institute, deputy manager of Jingdezhengshi
Zhongkian Gongcheng Jianshe Bangongshi and deputy chief
commander of Jiangxi Jingde Airport Engineering Work. He has
years of extensive experience in the lottery industry in China,
lottery development strategy, operational management, supplier
management, marketing and customer service.

Management for Lottery Business
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Management for Lottery Business (continued)

FEXBEEAE (&)

ZHAO Xuejun, aged 45, is the deputy chairman of Shenzhen
Sinodata Technology Co Ltd (”Sinodata”) and is responsible for
the new business development especially in paperless lottery
platform. Mr Zhao holds a M.Sc. and a Ph.D degree of photoelectric
equipment and mechanical engineering from Chongqing University.
He joined Sinodata in 1998 and has been engaged in the research
and development and project management work on lottery system
solutions, and equipment as well as lottery games for long time.
He has led the planning and implementation of issuance and
administration system of Computer Ticket Games in welfare lottery
for 16 provinces in China and has extensive experience in lottery

development strategy, technology R&D and corporate management.

ZHU Yi, aged 43, is the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Sinodata Technology Co Ltd and is in charge of the marketing
functions. He graduated from Chongging University with a bachelor
degree of Electrical Engineering. Since 1993, Mr Zhu has been
working in the lottery industry of China. He has long been engaged
in the research and development of the lottery market, and is
responsible for the sales and marketing of the Computer Ticket
Games project of more than ten provinces in China. He has extensive
experience and has outstanding achievements in anticipating the
development trend of the lottery industry, capturing marketing

opportunities and market operation.

LI Xue Jun, aged 38, is the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Sinodata Technology Co Ltd, and is in charge of technical matters.
He graduated from Chongging University in the department of
photoelectric equipment and mechanical engineering with a master
degree in Engineering. Mr Li has been responsible for the planning
and development of the lottery issue and management system. He
has completed the implementation of the technological solutions
and engineering tasks of the Computer Ticket Games issue and
management system in 16 provinces in China, with which he was
awarded the prize of "Excellent New Product” of the Guangdong
Province and a number of national patents. With extensive experience
in the planning of total lottery solutions and the development and
implementation of relevant products, he has exceptional insights
into and practical experience of the application of relevant lottery
technologies and their development prospects.

JIANG Libin, aged 38, is the general manager of Guangzhou
Latech Technology Co Ltd (“Guangzhou Latech”). Mr Jiang joined
Guangzhou Latech since 2000 and has extensive experience in
mechanical and electronic engineering research and related business
operations. He graduated from the faculty of power control in Beijing
University of Aeronautics & Astronautics.
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Management for Lottery Business (continued)

QIAO Jin, aged 42, is the general manager of Shenzhen Kingsail
Software Tech Co Ltd. Mr Qiao graduated from Chongging
University and holds a M.Sc. degree from the Department of
Applied Mathematics and a Ph.D degree from the School of
Optoelectronic Engineering. He has over 10 years of experience in
the field of information technology and engineering, specializing in

comprehensive information system application.

TSANG Lung Fai, aged 47, the Chief Executive Officer of Beijing
Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd and is responsible for the
overall management of the printing of lottery tickets. Mr Tsang holds
a master degree in Business Administration from Massey University
in New Zealand. He has worked in C & C Security Printing Company
Limited for around 20 years and was experienced in security printing.
He was formerly the general manager of Hong Kong and Dongguan
plants of RR Donnelley, an international printing firm.

ZHONG Wu, aged 48, is the Chief Operating Officer of Beijing Xinan
Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd and is responsible for the overall
operation of the printing of lottery tickets. Mr Zhong graduated
from Beijing University of Aeronautics & Astronautics — School of
Economics and Management, with a master degree of business
administration. He has over 10 years of experience in product

development and logistic management and business planning.

TUNG Wai Ching, aged 46, is the general manager of Beijing
Lohowin Marketing Co Ltd and is responsible for the overall
management of the sales of lottery tickets. Mr Tung holds a
master degree in Business Administration from the The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He has over 10 years of experience in sales &
marketing and management and has thorough understanding to the
Chinese market.

LI Yong Zhong, aged 43, is the general manager of Elottery Vision
(Beijing) Technology Co Ltd (“Elottery Vision”). Mr Li graduated
from Wuhan University with a bachelor degree of computer
and has completed the Executive Development Program from
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University. He has
extensive experience in research and development and engineering
management in the field of telecommunication and has outstanding
achievements in technology development and management, operating
platform development and standardization management of Elottery

Vision.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERKE

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code"”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Listing Rules”).

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.
The Company has complied with the Code throughout the accounting
period covered by this report except in certain circumstances which
are provided and discussed in the latter part of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of business and
affairs of the Group of the best interest of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors,
with two Executive Directors namely Mr Chan How Chung, Victor and
Mr Boo Chun Lon and three Independent Non-executive Directors
namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho, Mr Chow Siu Ngor and Mr Lee Ka Lun. The

biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to 16.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are financially independent
from the Group. The Company confirmed with all Independent
Non-executive Directors as to their independence with reference to
the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is collectively responsible for the formulating of the
Group’s overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business
performance of the Group, preparing and approving financial
statements, recommendation of the Directors’ appointment or
re-appointment, considering and approving material contracts and
transactions as well as other significant policy and financial matters.
The Board also gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to
the management for the day-to-day operation and administration

functions of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

There were four Board meetings held for the year ended 31 December
2010. The following was an attendance record of the Board meetings
held by the Board during the year:

Executive Directors HITEE

Chan How Chung, Victor ]

Boo Chun Lon AR U BE
Independent Non-executive Directors BB TEE
Yuen Wai Ho b )& =

Chow Siu Ngor PN E

Lee Ka Lun EPN

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not at present have a Chairman nor a Chief
Executive Officer. Nevertheless, the main duties and responsibilities
of a Chairman and a Chief Executive Officer are currently held
by separate individuals with written guidelines for the division of
responsibilities with a view to maintain an effective segregation of
duties between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group's business and operations.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure and consider the appointment of a
Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive Officer if candidates
with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be
identified within or outside the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 September
2005.
Directors of the Company namely Mr Chow Siu Ngor (as Chairman),
Mr Yuen Wai Ho and Mr Lee Ka Lun.

It currently consists of three Independent Non-executive

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:

1. To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

2. To have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior

management;

3. To review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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4. To review and approve the compensation payable to Executive 4., BEARMAERNTESTREREEEREBA
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss or R MEN TRENEE:

termination of their office;

5. To review and approve compensation arrangements relating to 5. BALMtEFHEMEXREBERERNRERE: R
dismissal or removal of Directors; and

6. To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in 6. MRIUMESHEEABMEALLZ2EREHAR
deciding his own remuneration. FHME -
There was one Remuneration Committee meeting held for the year HE-_T—TFF+-_A=1+—HLFE HFHZEg
ended 31 December 2010. The following was an attendance record BRIT—REFHE- LXT%#H@H;EAEAEW%TTE@@
of the Remuneration Committee meeting held by the Remuneration B HFE AL
Committee during the year:
Remuneration Committee Members FWES &K S8
Chow Siu Ngor PNE 1/1 100%
Yuen Wai Ho bt iE = 11 100%
Lee Ka Lun FRE 11 100%
The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31 HE-_Z-—ZTF+_A=T—HBLEFEZ2EEZHH
December 2010 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee FREBHFMZESEL R IU%é%@%t}E B
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors FEERZEAZNBEARMG THH 2 HHEL
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment, A BE- ZK%EE@EEE’UFD%HK‘/R&E%E%
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and FHEHI S AIE
desirability of performance-based remuneration.
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES
The Audit Committee was established on 28 September 2000. It ERZEER _ETTFNA-T/\HKZ HATH
currently consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors of the ARABZ ZBBLERTESENR PIERERLE
Company namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho (as Chairman), Mr Chow Siu Ngor (XF) BNEEERETRBERE-
and Mr Lee Ka Lun.
The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are: EZZEENEERBOT
1. To review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the 1. BIAEERMANGTEINRED: Kk
Group; and
2. To review the financial reporting process and internal control 2. BEUAKEEMBERERTFMAIELZHE-

system of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

There were two Audit Committee meetings held for the year ended
31 December 2010. The following was an attendance record of the
Audit Committee meetings held during the year:

Audit Committee Members ERZEEEME
Yuen Wai Ho B 48 =
Chow Siu Ngor NS
Lee Ka Lun EXN

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor, the scope of audit services and related audit fees
payable to the external auditor for the Board’s approval. The Audit
Committee met and discussed with the external auditor on their audit
strategy and assessment of the sufficiency of the internal control of
the Company.

The Audit Committee recommends the re-appointment of Ting
Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising), as the
Group's external auditor for 2011 and that the resolution shall be put
forth for the shareholders of the Company to consider and approve at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year the remuneration paid to the Company’s external
auditor, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising), for statutory audit and other services were approximately
HK$2,170,000 and HK$604,500 respectively. The non-statutory audit
services mainly consist of due diligent review.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not formed Nomination Committee. According
to the bye-laws of the Company (”Bye-laws"”), the Company may
from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. The Board also has the power to appoint any person to
be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
and such appointment shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in

general meeting.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company has adopted
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS

None of the Directors is aware of any information which would
reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not, throughout
the year, in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, except that Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Currently the Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
at the Company’s annual general meeting as specified in the Bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies which are pertinent to its operations and
relevant to the financial statements, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements and
those for the auditor to the shareholders of the Company are set out
on page 35.

INTERNAL CONTROL

To protect its assets and to ensure the accuracy and reliability of the
financial information that the Company employs in its business or
releases to the public, the Company conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls. The scope of these
reviews includes, among others, finance, operations, regulation
compliance and risk management.
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are principally engaged in (i)
lottery system and games design business; distribution and marketing
of lottery products; and (ii) financial business.

JOINT VENTURE AND SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s joint venture and principal subsidiaries

are set out in notes 23 and 49 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
the state of the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 37 to 147.

The Board declared an interim dividend of 0.35 HK cent per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 which were paid on 29
October 2010. The Directors recommended, subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the payment of a final dividend of 0.56 HK cent per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 payable on or around
Thursday, 21 July 2011 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the Company's register of members at the close of business
on Wednesday, 29 June 2011.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
28 June 2011 to Wednesday, 29 June 2011,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be

both days inclusive,

registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s)
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at 26/F, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 June 2011.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the

year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group made
approximately 23% of its entire sales to five largest customers
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 5%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 13% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 6%.

None of the Directors, or any of their associates or any other
shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and five
largest suppliers during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors
Chan How Chung, Victor
Boo Chun Lon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yuen Wai Ho

Chow Siu Ngor

Lee Ka Lun

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr Yuen Wai Ho and
Mr Lee Ka Lun shall respectively retire and are eligible for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Yuen and Mr Lee offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election and re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Details of the Directors’ interests in contracts are set out in note 46 to
the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance to which
the Company, its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares of
the Company as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”)
in the Company
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Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Shares held Nature of interest issued share capital
BEEMA RO HE B HEBRTRABDL
Chan How Chung, Victor 1,198,805,635 Interest of a controlled corporation 15.43%
(G (Note) ZEGSARER
(Htat)
Note: These shares are held by Kingly Profits Corporation as beneficial owner. Wi . &5 BR D B Kingly Profits CorporationfE & & 4 #

Kingly Profits Corporation is wholly owned by Smart Ease Corporation,
which in turn, is wholly owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
Directors or chief executives, nor their associates, had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 November 2002 (the
“Scheme").

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to executives and employees of the Group and other persons
who have make a contribution to the Group as incentives and/or
rewards for their contributions to the Company or its subsidiaries.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant options to the eligible
participants as defined in the Scheme to subscribe for such number
of shares as the Board may determine. Options granted should be
accepted within 30 days from the date of offer. Upon acceptance of
the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the average
of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval and
adoption of the Scheme provided that the Company may at any time
seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such
schemes or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed.

REXLot Holdings Limited f/Zz R IZR B R A F

R
NTRARAR-_ZZ_F+-A-+_ARAZHE
PerEstdl ([ZFH8)) 2 E2GFTHE -

ZAUEERARRATAEHASEEHERZ AL
BITBRAEREEREMALREBRE FAKSE
HARBREMBARELERZ BB R, RE&H -

REZHE EEGANZAEMREZRERS M
ATERLERE URBEESMETHE 2RO -
&ﬁZﬁ%%MQEmE%t?mEW&% EMmEE
PRy AR ABRARRB X 1.00/8TTIERERE
Ptz LB -

%%%Zﬁﬁﬁm§$ﬁ§E HERBER ()% L 88
%F“E(M EER)E i%tﬂﬁﬁ%%mZ%

HUTE: (O)BEERHBRERSAEESRXABR
%#Eﬁ@%ﬁmz P U E : R(BR D EE

(AEEERE) -

RTTEAR B % AT 8 M AR 2 "] E A BB IR 51 81
ZHREBKEMART IR LR TREBEAIAER
KRR EBARBEHITRAZI0%  HEARE
AT BE RS Ok e R E S EIREHEFE RRRPERA
SLREBHAMEERZERITRNZ10% F;EE
MEEZ LRE EATREA R BB R 8%
HZBERE (BEREBEZSFAEERITE CDEH
BERMHCTEZERE)BIEFELER-



The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or Independent Non-executive
Directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company's issued share capital on
the date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The Scheme will
expire on 22 November 2012.

At 31 December 2010, no Director had any interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2010, 70,000,000 number of share options were granted
under the Scheme. The closing prices of the Shares on 29 September
2010, being the trading date immediately before the date of offer
to grant of such options was HK$0.71. The total number of Shares
available for issue upon exercise of the options outstanding under the
Scheme was 196,500,000 Shares (representing 2.52% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of this report).

The fair value of options granted during the year as determined by an
independent third party valuer using a Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model was approximately HK$4,965,160. Key assumptions used in
the valuation of the options granted on 4 October 2010 include an
expected volatility of share price of 53.22% per annum, a risk-free
rate of interest of 0.24% to 0.28% per annum on the date of grant.
The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the

Company’s share price over the previous year.

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgeHE (&)

REBEELREERLBREBSBHZATMNI2ZERN B
TESEER2EATRBZTERAR R A HA
BRETZERZ2ERE (RERTE DEEEE
RITE2ERE)MBETRAZETZIROLH T
BRBARHEREEAZEBTROZ1% WAE
ZRENBULIFERTEEE D BAARR R NE L B
ZBEITRARZ0.1%3 EEHES5,000,000% T2
BEAE - BIZB SCAE A A R R B ©

BRETFEHSREFGIEET EREBERER
BT 10F BT /THEERE ARAWEBEITE
AN AREEREZ ZEBHR -Zitg R =_2—=
Ft+—A=+=BEm-

RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H EFUETMAIRE
ARRROHOBREEZ BREZTE CHE=-ZT
—ZF+ZA=1+—HILFE 70,000,000 & i &
EEEH-BROR_Z—ZTFLA-T B BIEER
P EEREZ MRS AZHBMERTIET -
RARZ AT & W R 1T B AR 1T - Al BT
f% 15 42 £ 5196,500,0008% (HHE R A KL A HE &
TN EI2.52% ) °

FRNEERLBRENAAEHBLE = HHEEMRA
MhR R R T ERAETE A44,965,160%
TLeRZT—TF+ A M AL ERENGERA
NEZREPETTREB LS A53.22% R
ERER L BB RRERFFEF0.24%%0.28% ©
TBEEBMEDNIEARNREFOREREL KB EERT -

Annual Report 2010 =ZB—ZFF

29



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

The movements in share options granted under the Scheme during RAFARZTEREBEREZZHIT
the year are shown below:

Number of options
BREHA
Transferred Transferred
from other to other Date of
At Granted category category Exercised Lapsed At offer Exercise
Category of 1 January during during during during during 31 December to grant price per  Exercisable
participant 2010 the year the year the year the year the year 2010 options Share  period
RZB-%F
RZZ-%F G E G L TR BRE
SEALER -A-8 ERRE REMER  EEREN ERfTR ERER =t-A REAE  SRORE K
(HKS)
(1)
Employees 16,000,000 - - - (5,000,000¢  (11,000,000) - 20/06/2007 079 09/07/2007 -
€8 08/0712010
10,000,000 - - - - (10,000,000) - 25/07/2007 113 08/08/2007 -
07/08/2010
5,000,000 - - - (5,000,007 - - 14/10/2008 030 3171072008 -
30/10/2011
182,500,000 - 30,000,000” - (55,500,000 - 157,000,000 08/12/2009 090  16/12/2009 -
071202012
- 70,000,000 - - (52,500,000¢ - 17,500,000 301092010 074 041072010-
29/09/2012
Other eligible 20,000,000 N - - - (20,000,000) - 20/06/2007 079 09/07/2007 -
participants 08/07/2010
EfhaER
REAT 5,000,000 - - - - (5,000,000) - 25/07/2007 113 08/08/2007 -
07/0812010
94,000,000 - - (30,000,000 (42,000,000¢ - 22,000,000 08/12/2009 090  16/12/2009 -
071202012
Total &3t 332,500,000 70,000,000 30,000,000 (30,000,000) (160,000,000 (46,000,000 196,500,000
Remarks: HaE -
1 Such share options were re-classified from the category of “Other eligible 1 HAREAR2EATHBUEY ZSERERFAH[H
participants” to “Employees” during the year as a result of the change of thEEBEBSEALT| —HEFSEZEEER] -
title of the relevant participant.
2 The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the 2 ZEEREETEZBA RO ZMEFHERTER
date on which the options were exercised was HK$1.110. 1.1104 7T °
3 The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the 3 ZEEREETEZBA RO ZMEFTHRTER
date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.932. 0.932/8 7T °
4 The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the 4 ZEEREETEZBA RO MEFHKRTER
date on which the options were exercised was HK$1.017. 1.0174 7T
5 The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the 5 ZEEREETEZBA RO ZMEFTHRTER
date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.779. 0.779% T °
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ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, details of the interests
held by the Directors in businesses that are considered to compete or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, are disclosed as follows:

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgeHE (&)

BEROSES 2L2H
B EXPREEN ARR - HERAR HRAEE
MBARSEEAMNEARKFATMRREGEESE
EA 2 BEEEETAEBALRFAREAEMR
BlZ Bt B 5 A -

EENREMERP 2 ES
RIBEETARRNES.10(2)16  E=PTHEAR M EL ok Al g £
AEBEEBEERARERF CEBRAFBEREN
T~

Name of company

DAEEH

Competing business

BEMER

RPI Finance Limited (“RPI") Money lending
WEHBARLR ([HEFB]) &%

D & M Finance Limited ("D&M") Money lending

=

TKR Finance Limited (“TKRF") Money lending
MREEAEERAR ([SE]) &%

Mr Chan How Chung, Victor is a director and deemed to be the
substantial shareholder of RPI and TKRF. He is a director of D&M.
The terms and conditions of the financing loans of each of RPI, D&M
and TKRF are market driven and agreed at arm’s length between the
borrowers and the financiers. When making decisions on the above
competing business, the relevant director, in the performance of his
duty as a director of the Company, has acted and will continue to act
in the best commercial interest of the Group.

MERELEAHNENBRERE2ESRERALS
DRAZEZRE - ADAMZ EF - 1R 75 - D&M
MEFRSEBZYBERZ GRREGHHETSEE ML
HEEEFERATHBERTE RElF] Ll BFEB 2
AERE AHEF (RETHEIEARARES IS
HIKETHSHBERDFTEAEERERENRZ
T8 -
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2010, the interests or short positions of the
following parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

IERRER

KoE-—2F+-A=+—B RERAREES
8995 1501 55336 AT B 2 B R AT waﬁ<%
AT EFRATHABIN) WAR ARG+ A 218
HAARIT

Number of Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Shares held Nature of interest issued share capital
RERERB FrEsRHEE EEME HERTREABESH®
Kingly Profits Corporation 1,198,805,635 Beneficial owner 15.43%
(Note) EmEAEA
(B1:E)
Ameriprise Financial Inc 714,234,300 Interest of controlled corporation 9.19%
SRk NGRS
Capital Research and Management 390,504,500 Investment manager 5.03%
Company wERKIE
Note: These Shares are held by Kingly Profits Corporation as beneficial owner. Wit - % E B B Kingly Profits CorporationfE & & 5
Kingly Profits Corporation is wholly owned by Smart Ease Corporation, B A# A ° Kingly Profits CorporationfSmart Ease
which in turn, is wholly owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor. The Corporation® & # A * fiSmart Ease Corporation8l g
interest disclosed herein was the same as the interest of Mr Chan How REREFE2EREG RURBECREEARE [EF
Chung, Victor as disclosed in the section under “Interests of Directors and REBITRABZEDS | —SAMBEEBMRZBILEY
Chief Executives” in this report. AR e
Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under R EXFIEEEN BREZHFRBEKROEI6CHKE
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2010, the GeEMpER R_ZE—ZFF+-_A=+—81"

Company had not been notified of any other person who had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year

ended 31 December 2010.

REXLot Holdings Limited /52 B R A F
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Particulars of connected transactions of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in note 46 to
the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2010 are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 148.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set out
in note 38 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 20 to 24.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EETERE (&F)

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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TING HO KWAN & CHAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF REXLOT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of REXLot
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 37 to
147, which comprise the consolidated and the Company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B Y & B RS
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
& ( &

VB HRE (&)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated Income Statement

AWK

BE_T-—FEE+-_A=+—RIEE

2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTTNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
=3 FET FE T
Turnover —E 3 5 1,614,328 1,272,069
Cost of sales/services rendered HE IRERE 2 KA (671,150) (635,508)
Other income E Az A 5 22,432 8,085
Other (losses)/gains, net Hi (BR) MmFE 5 (5,526) 19,496
Selling and distribution expenses  $H& K& % 8% F (73,178) (46,329)
Administrative expenses THEHR (203,391) (165,968)
Operating profit REHER 683,515 451,845
Finance costs W% ER 8 (3,384) (1,608)
Profit before taxation B B4 A1 5= 9 680,131 450,237
Taxation IR 12 (35,677) (34,082)
Profit for the year F it Al 644,454 416,155
Attributable to: LA A T FEfh :
Equity holders of the Company RARERFERA 14 636,016 424,581
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR & 8,438 (8,426)
644,454 416,155
Earnings per share for profit AATEREEABRERT 2
attributable to equity holders ERZEF
of the Company 15

— Basic

- Diluted

— &R

—#E

Details of dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in
note 13 to the financial statements.

The notes on pages 45 to 147 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

8.26 cents {li

5.66 cents fll

8.23 cents fli

5.63 cents

FAENRZBRNKE ZFBERHMBRERME13

HEE -

FASEVATE 2 IMEBA A MWK — 20 -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HReEZE KR EX

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Profit for the year FERF 644,454 416,155
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 mH W 2=
Exchange difference arising from HMEIEINETE TSk 2 1B X =5
translation of financial statements of
foreign operations 16,809 6
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHEWFHALE 661,263 416,161
Attributable to: AT ARG :
Equity holders of the Company AARERFEEA 651,055 424,587
Non-controlling interests FE1% R fE 2 10,208 (8,426)
661,263 416,161

The notes on pages 45 to 147 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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At 31 December 2010

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERBR

RZE—ZFF+-_A=+—H

2010 2009
—_E-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
HiiF FET FE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB k& 16 236,607 156,428
Prepaid lease payments + b {5 FA 4 2 FE AT AR A 5P R
on land use rights 17 36,103 36,120
Investment property wEME 18 1,159 962
Goodwill 5k 19 1,702,266 1,694,266
Intangible assets EREE 20 103,650 109,663
Deposits for acquisition of BAHELHMEREZTE
leasehold land use rights 21 - 3,129
Statutory deposits EERE 24 833 632
Deferred tax assets RIER IS E 25 46 1,580
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 2,080,664 2,002,780
Current assets TEEE
Inventories FE 26 138,793 99,929
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R 27 867,998 679,029
Utility and other deposits NAFEERHEMEZES 28 287,916 248,056
Prepayments and other receivables 8% 5% 78 & H #f & It 30 1B 29 430,876 385,459
Financial assets at fair value BABREANENEZEMEE
through profit or loss 30 8,514 23,064
Cash and bank balances e RIRTER 31 294,214 353,158
Total current assets MBEEEE 2,028,311 1,788,695
Total assets wWEE 4,108,975 3,791,475
EQUITY BERES
Capital and reserves KARBEEFEA
attributable to equity holders EEEXRRFHE
of the Company
Share capital [N 32 77,677 75,902
Reserves G 3,600,113 3,261,548
Proposed final dividend BEARERE 13 43,608 33,083
3,721,398 3,370,533
Non-controlling interests FERERS 52,710 76,138
Total equity R 3,774,108 3,446,671
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

REEEREBR (&)

At 31 December 2010 R=ZZE—ZFF+_A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZEENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
M &t F#ET FET
LIABILITIES =0
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 25 59,933 47,338
Total non-current liabilities RBEERE 59,933 47,338
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables ERE SRR 35 77,494 111,133
Other payables and accruals H fih B~ 3008 K FEET AR 36 54,159 77,095
Borrowings BE 37 111,466 80,190
Current tax liabilities EHNHIEAE 31,815 29,048
Total current liabilities mE B EEE 274,934 297,466
Total liabilities weE 334,867 344,804
Total equity and liabilities REERREEEE 4,108,975 3,791,475
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,753,377 1,491,229
Total assets less current HMEERABARS
liabilities 3,834,041 3,494,009

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 29 March 2011 and are signed on behalf of the Board

by:

MBRERER-_ZE——F=A-_+ L BBEEFTERE

RERTZ YA THEFTREEE:

Boo Chun

Lon

Chan How Chung, Victor
(G
DIRECTOR
BE

The notes on pages 45 to 147 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEEMFBRX

At 31 December 2010 R=ZZE—ZFF+_-_A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt &t FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N NGIA: Eo 22 2,927,742 2,530,968
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables 8%} 58 & H fib & U 5k 18 29 2 1,459
Amount due from a subsidiary JE W Bt /BB A B 5k I8 22 200,000 222,000
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHEH 317 644 16,142
Total current assets mEEELE 200,646 239,601
Total assets mEE 3,128,388 2,770,569
EQUITY B R =
Capital and reserves AATERIEE AEL
attributable to equity holders EBEARKf##E
of the Company
Share capital N 32 77,677 75,902
Reserves & &5 34 2,916,053 2,644,065
Proposed final dividend BEARHRE 13 43,608 33,083
Total equity ERBE 3,037,338 2,753,050
LIABILITIES aE&E
Current liabilities TEEE
Other payables and accruals E b & 5 3R IE R FE 5T 5K IR 36 2,143 17,519
Amount due to a subsidiary AL EPAGIE S 22 88,907 -
Total liabilities we & 91,050 17,519
Total equity and liabilities BREZREBHEE 3,128,388 2,770,569
Net current assets RBEEFE 109,596 222,082
Total assets less current MEERABER
liabilities 3,037,338 2,753,050

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 29 March 2011 and are signed on behalf of the Board

by:

Chan How Chung, Victor

PBRZ R
DIRECTOR
EF

The notes on pages 45 to 147 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

MBBERER_E——F=A-TLBEEE=SRAE
REETE THTHNEEERRRE:

Boo Chun Lon

UL BE
DIRECTOR
EF

FASEN4TEZ W B A B3R EK — 3D -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERE B X

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—Z—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARERAARE
Capital  Share-based Exchange Proposed Non-
Share Share redemption  payment Special translation  Retained final controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ dividend Total interests equity
HRG
E5EE  XfiRAE 3 ] FER

BE  BHERE e B RHER  ERGRE  REEA RERR ait L I
HKS000  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOD

TiET FET FET AT AT AT AT TAT TET TiET TiET

Balance at 1 January 2009 ThE-A-RziH 73962 2,365,597 158 13,643 112,210 32,049 380,604 - 2978283 82,272 3,060,555
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - s - A58 (8426) 416,155
Other comprehensive income for the year EREBEENE - - - - - 6 - - 6 - 6
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries - - - - (84,855) - - - (84,855) (6,145) (91,000)
Non-controlling interests arising from acquisition  REMBARMEEZ

of subsidiaries (note 45) FEmRES (f - - - - - - - - - 8,437 8,437
Recognition of share option benefits at fair value B 2iEA LBz B MERERT - - - 7,951 - - - - 7,951 - 7,951
Share options lapsed BREXN - - - (1,679) - - 1679 - - - -
Issue of new shares Loyl 1,940 56,260 - - - - - - 58,200 - 58,200
Transfer to share premium on exercise of RifFERENEZREE

share options - 2,157 - (2,157) - - - - - - -
Interim dividend (note 73) Hi

- - - - - - (13,633) - (13633) - (13,633)

Proposed final dividend (note 73) - - - - - - (33,083) 33,083 - -

Balance at 31 December 2009 and

1 January 2010 75902 2,424,014 158 17,758 27415 32,055 760,148 33083 3370533 76,138 3,446,671
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - 636016 - 636016 8438 644,454
Other comprehensive income for the year FRAMZENE - - - - - 15,039 - - 15,039 1,770 16,809
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries  WEERI B2 A EIMES - = = = (27.415) - (197,749) - (5084 (33636)  (258.800)
Non-controlling interests arising from acquisition ~ WEHBARES 2

of subsidaries (ot 45) RS (i45) - - - - - - (167,589 - (167,585 - (167,585)
Recognition of share option benefits at fair value B AR B HBRiERA - - - 4,965 - - - - 4965 - 4965
Share options lapsed BREAR - = = (8,606) = = 8,606 = = = =
Issue of new shares ARG 1775 146,005 - - - - - - 147800 - 147800
Transfer to share premium on exercise of RifrERENEZRIVEE

share options - 8,035 - (8,035) - - - - - - -
2009 proposed final dividend paid (note 13) “IINERRABERERE (H:t13) - - - - = = (92) (33083 (33179 = (33,179)
Interim dividend (note 13) AR (Wi 13) - - - - - - @ - @) - ()
2010 proposed final dividend Z2-TEREAERE - - - - - - (43,608) 43,608 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZB-BE+-A=t-Az&H 11,611 2,578,074* 158* 6,082* - 47,094* 968,705* 43,608 3,721,398 52,710 3,774,108
e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of i ZEREROERGEEEEBRBR A A FBEL

approximately HK$3,600, 113,000 in the consolidated balance sheet. 3,600,113,000;% 7T °
The notes on pages 45 to 147 are an integral part of these BASEATEZHSB ARGV ERE—3 % -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
Bt &t FET F& T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before taxation B 35 A1 g A 680,131 450,237
Adjustments for: FEIEE :
Dividend income iz B A 5 - (38)
Interest income B A 5 (1,022) (698)
Interest expense FERZ 8 3,384 1,608
Share option benefits % AR R 12 A 33 4,965 7,951
Bad debts written off, net 2 BR M 8H ) 58 - 422
Allowance for impairment of RIZERRMEREFE
bad and doubtful debts, net 9 30 62
Depreciation and amortisation e R 9 65,359 49,811
Forfeiture of deposits for RWEBARE L hERAEZ
acquisition of leasehold land EXRE
use rights 9 3,201 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment BB 9 720 8,853
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of HERBEREAAEFREZ
financial assets at fair value CMEEZBIE (W) FE
through profit or loss 5 4,038 (3,487)
Fair value losses/(gains) on BREREAAENEZ
financial assets at fair value TREEZ
through profit or loss NAEEE () 5 2,714 (16,009)
Fair value gain on investment TEMFE 2R E W
property 18 (174) -
Operating profit before ARG EEESE B 2 K& BT
changes in working capital 763,346 498,712
Changes in working capital EEESLETE
Increase in statutory deposits AT IR IE (201) -
Increase in inventories FE#E N (36,540) (20,225)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEWE SRR (8m) R
receivables (182,109) 42,608
(Increase)/decrease in utility and AAZEREMES (N R
other deposits (38,804) 5,511
Increase in prepayments and TE S TE e H th JE Ui 5K TE 1 N
other receivables (43,585) (108,563)
Increase in pledged bank deposits £ & # #8 17 77 & A0 (28,035) (16,875)
Decrease/(increase) in bank SBITHEBR D (1)
balances — segregated accounts —BIRP 12,342 (8,610)
Decrease in trade payables FET B 5 RO (35,450) (43,913)
(Decrease)/increase in other HiE B R ERE
payables and accruals CRA) /a0 (24,064) 10,859
Net cash generated from REEBHMBRESFE
operations 386,900 359,504
Interest received 2 U F B 1,022 698
Interest paid SRR (3,384) (1,075)
Taxation paid =ENE2E (20,100) (22,286)
Net cash generated from RETHFIBREFHE
operating activities 364,438 336,841
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Conso|io|ofed Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HEHREREXR (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=ZF

—ZF+_A=t—HLFE

2010 2009
—E—2F —ETNRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
Ht it FET FE T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchases of financial assets at BEABABREANETFEZ
fair value through profit or loss ERMEE - (5,162)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWME WERZE
equipment 16 (134,772) (67,160)
Proceeds on disposal of financial HEBBIESZALETELZ
assets at fair value through SRMEEZFERE
profit or loss 7,798 10,911
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE WELEZEZ
plant and equipment Fﬁﬁ?ﬁ( 68 =
Acquisition of additional interests  [F) [ /B A 7] 2> & 25 R 51 U BE
from minority shareholders of %Eﬁl\féﬁﬁ
the subsidiaries 44 (258,800) (91,000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WHEMKME QR (MRAFHEL)
cash acquired 45 (175,585) (208,631)
Net cash used in investing RETEHMARSFE
activities (561,291) (361,042)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEH
Dividend received B4k & - 38
Issue of shares, net of BTG (HBRETER)
issuing costs 147,800 58,200
Proceeds from borrowings BB RS RIE 111,466 79,590
Repayment of borrowings BEBE (81,556) (15,405)
Dividend paid to the equity ERAAAERFEEAZMNZRE
holders of the Company 13 (60,206) (13,633)
Net cash generated from RMETEMBRSFE
financing activities 117,504 108,790
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE iﬂ%&iﬁﬁ%{ﬁ%
IN CASH AND CASH WD) nE
EQUIVALENTS (79,349) 84,589
Exchange gain on cash and cash BHERRESEEY 2 E X K=
equivalents 4,387 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MR—A—HBzRERREZEY
AT 1 JANUARY 309,187 224,598
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-—A=+-—-HBzE&E
AT 31 DECEMBER RESEY 31 234,225 309,187

The notes on pages 45 to 147 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% ) R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

REXLot Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at 34/F,
COSCO Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise
the structure of the Group in preparing for the listing of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became
the holding company of the Group in Hong Kong on 15 August
2000 and its shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 28 September 2000.

During the year, the Group involves in the following principal
activities:

o Lottery business
o Financial services:
Broking
Securities margin financing
Corporate finance and asset management
Money lending

The lottery business comprises development and production
of lottery machines, related operating software system and
networks for lottery industry, the distribution and marketing of
lottery products and development of mobile value added services
for lottery business in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

— & R

HEPEERERAR ([ARA]])RRARE
AR INERECBEREEQA - ARAMNEE
¥ AR SRR RNEFI8IFHL TESH
RANE341E -

RIBER/EBEAREBERBEIASHA R R R0 7B
R L REERAFE ARFAR_ZTTEEF
NATHBRAAEENEB ZER AR ME
BROTHR-ZZBZZFNLA -+ /ANBRRERPT
EREM -

FA AEEREATEREH:

s HEEK
e TEURF:

RILET

BHTRBE

TrERBEREEER

&%
HEEBEERTFEARLNE ([HE]) KL
ZHEXZRBENEEREE TRITXAMER
B RGEMEE Y REmBBCXET ISR
AR BERYERZBHFRIEER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial

which collective term

Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the applicable of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and futures periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRS that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(o)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities (together, the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
investment properties (note 2(h)) and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (note 2(e)(i)) are stated at their

fair values.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except where otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

(i)  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Controls exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities

related costs are expensed as incurred.

assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

MBEHRRKE (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9]

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests, represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at their proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loan
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with notes 2(o) or 2(p)
depending on the nature of the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i)

(i1)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial assets (note 2(e)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or jointly controlled entity (note 2(c)(ii)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses,
unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). The results of the subsidiary are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivables.

Joint ventures

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group
or Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the group or company
and one or more of the other parties share joint
control over the economic activity of the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
(ii) Joint ventures (continued)
The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by proportionate-consolidation.
The Group combines its share of the joint ventures’
individual income and expenses, assets and liabilities
and cash flows on a line-by-line basis with similar
items in the Group's financial statements. The Group
recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale
of assets by the Group to the joint venture that it is
attributable to the other ventures. The Group does
not recognise its share of profits or losses from the
joint venture that result from the Group’s purchase
of assets from the joint venture until it re-sells the
assets to an independent party. However, a loss on
the transaction is recognised immediately if the loss
provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable

value of current assets, or an impairment loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over
a jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial assets (note 2(e)).

(d) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the

acquiree; over

(i) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (note 2(j)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of the purchased goodwill is included
in the calculation of profit or loss on disposal.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading and are stated in
the balance sheet at fair value. A financial assets is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction cost and gain or loss on the fair value
changes of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Financial assets (continued)

(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise “statutory deposits”,
“trade receivables, deposits and other receivables”
and “cash and bank balances” in the consolidated
balance sheet (notes 2(I) and 2(m)).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses (note 2(j)). Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant

and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated sufficient to
write off their costs, less accumulated impairment losses
and residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. For plant and equipment
under construction, no depreciation is provided until the
construction is completed and the assets are ready for
their intended use. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

— Leasehold buildings 30 - 50 years
— Leasehold improvements 20%
— Lottery machines 4 — 12 years
— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 -33%
— Plant and machinery 10 - 25%
— Motor vehicles 10 - 20%

The assets’ residual values, if any and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, is included in the income statement in

the period the item is derecognised.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in lessee-
occupied properties.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights relating to
buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on the straight-line basis which
is charged to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Investment properties

Investment properties, being properties owned or held
under finance leases to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation, are stated in the balance sheet at fair value.
These include lands held for currently undetermined
future use. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note
2(s).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease (note 2(t)), and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Prepaid
lease payments are accounted for as described in note 2(t).

Property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property is classified as property, plant
and equipment and stated at cost until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is reclassified as
investment property at fair value. Any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (note 2(j)). Amortisation of intangible
assets with finite useful lives is charged to income
statement on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the income statement when the
asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired.

(i) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of two to
ten years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as
expenses as incurred.

(ii) Deferred development costs

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop computer
software is capitalised and deferred only when
the projects are clearly defined; the expenditure is
separately identifiable and can be measured reliably;
there is reasonable certainty that the projects
are technically feasible, and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (note 2(j)). Amortisation is provided
on the straight-line basis over the commercial lives
of the underlying production, subject to a maximum
of 20 years commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=ZF

2.

—ZTF+=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(iii) Operating right

(iv)

Operating right represents expenditure incurred
on obtaining an operating right in a lottery centre.
The operating right is with indefinite useful life and
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and tested for impairment annually.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how represents the technology,
technical information, know-how and experience in
relation to the lottery business. The technical know-
how is with indefinite useful life and carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses and tested
for impairment annually.

(j) Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities: note 2(j)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becomes probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEEIFEE(E)
() Impairment of assets (continued) () EBERE(E)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities (i) BRAFFREREMEWKEZHE
and other receivables (continued) (&
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is WA ERERFLE BREBBZEOT
determined and recognised as follows: AREERER:

For investments in jointly controlled entities
accounted for by proportionate consolidation
(see note 2(c)(ii)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment as a whole with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(j)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(j)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

- BERALAEEARNER
ZH B8 (MaE2(0)(ii)) k&
i = - R 8 & 18 T AR 1% MY 5E2())
(i) DA 3R 8 B2 48 T Uk () & 5E £
FREEELEMETHE - R
15 B 52 ) (i) B 5E AT U [B] < B B
FrRE R A ET IR A M EE - R
BEEEBSELD-

—  BERRAIRZIFRERARES
MmE MEBENREREELZ
FREE R AT ARRFEERE (W0
MBRZREER ARAUSE
BEZBROTMSEMER)M
ERZERFE - BRABHZR
BEERETEE#MD-

— SAREHEEAIRZENE SR
AR K H At B R MR R K H At
SRMEEMS  RMEBEDKRE
EREBEEGFREASRE
BE(MERBZZEER AR
SREERA ZERME (AE
NERRRZEEERTEZE
A R)BEIR) M A Rz =R A
B RBHERAIENERE
EEBEUNRRES (2088
LY 8 BR800 ) B 3 oK 12 5 A R
BAERE BB HER
SET EREERTERRE
ZERMEENARRAESRE &
RBEZERENABRAUEGEE
REREHENEENBEBIREN
FTHE -

Annual Report 2010 =ZB—ZFF{



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #ZEZZT—TF+-_A=+—HIFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEBHBER (&)
() Impairment of assets (continued) () EBERE(E)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities () BREZBFREREMERSEZHE
and other receivables (continued) (#&)

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative —

loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised

HRAMHERSEME EARE
fEEERZRAEREEN SR
iR - B RER N RETE R
TH ETEE%/\EXK R AT

TR )R B A A EE
MERE BREZAZEERLR
5 3R B0 (R (AR E B 18 -

in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

AT HERAEFEBRER
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities HBEBENS TEEBB%
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any BE - ZEEANERENEM
En-HEEM SRS ER o

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss

subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an MR E % 2B RESESER
o A RER A Al & B M R A RO

BEEBEEEZSHHE  ARER
Be@BiEsEE  REBERNEE
TREFEAEREEBLEEANEFE
REBRBREBEENELTHESE-

impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

(ii)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit

or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments on land use rights
classified as being held under an operating
lease;

- intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified as

held for sale); and

= goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(if)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating units (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEEIFEE(E)
() Impairment of assets (continued) () EBERE(E)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) BRtEEZHE (&)
- Reversals of impairment losses —  REEEREE
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an fisl FA LA 78 7€ PT YR [B] & B8 A (5 H
impairment loss is reversed if there has been RENES BE (FHBKRI)
a favourable change in the estimates used WA B S &L - 8 e R E
to determine the recoverable amount. An BEAgEMD -
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited Fri Bl e R EEIEAEEFRE
to the asset’'s carrying amount that would BRBEBEENBERATmMEDE
have been determined had no impairment FEREEREE AR o FTE B H
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals BEBBTERBRNFETA
of impairment losses are credited to profit Bame
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (iii) BB 3R R R e
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to BELETRA AEBERBERSS
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with FTERIFE345% [ AR 15 R &5 | 5h 87
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of BFEEENERmER AT ERE -
the first six months of the financial year. At the end R EASEAE IR - NS B A R B AR
of the interim period, the Group applies the same &R AE R IR A 2 B — R E R -
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria K B B g (B 5E2)) B (i) ) ©
as it would at the end of the financial year (note
2(j)(i) and (ii)).
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in RPN EEERBEBET
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent AIEE & BB - R A 8
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller Z BN 2 ST AR R A AT Ak AL (B - b B
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment BETAmRAEESERARDESE
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to MR EREES -

which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=ZF

2.

—ZTF+=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

0

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less

applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value, and after initial recognition, at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (note 2(j)), except for the
following receivables:

- interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured at
cost less any allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts; and

- short-term receivables with no stated interest rate
and the effect of discounting being immaterial, that
are measured at their original invoiced amount less

any allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
the tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if the deferred
tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. The
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews and
assesses the recognised and unrecognised deferred tax
assets and the future taxable profit to determine whether
any recognised deferred tax assets should be derecognised
and any unrecognised deferred tax assets should be
recognised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(r), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost, except for the
following payables:

- short-term payables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are
measured at their original invoiced amount; and

- interest-free loans from related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #EZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(9)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transactions costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Employee benefits

(i)  Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries in the PRC do not provide a pension
plan for their employees. The subsidiaries in the
PRC made contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans in the PRC which are recognised as
expenses in the income statement as incurred. The
subsidiaries have no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=-ZF

—ZTF+=

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(ir)

(iii)

(iv)

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the balance
sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date
for the expected future cost of such paid leave
earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to share-based payment reserve over the

remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options

are exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payment
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group's policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(r)(iii) below
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=ZF

—ZTF+=

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with note 2(r)(iii)
below. Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are
disclosed in accordance with note 2(r)(iii) below.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #EZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Commission income and handling fee income,
asset management and advisory fee income
Income arising from broking, corporate finance and
asset management is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered and the amount can be reliably
estimated and it is probable that it will be received.

(ii) Gain or loss on investments held for trading
Realised gain or loss on investments held for trading
is recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised
gain or loss on investments held for trading is
recognised to restate to their fair value on the
balance sheet date.

(iii) Income from provision of lottery machines and
related services, comprising:
Sales of goods
Sales of goods including lottery machines and related
software systems are recognised when the goods
are delivered at the customers’ premises which is
taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods; the related risks and rewards of
ownership and collectability of the related receivables
are reasonably assured. Revenue excludes value
added tax.

Income from lottery business

Income from lottery business including lottery
ticketing service, consultancy service, maintenance
service and other related services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the service is rendered.
Revenue excludes sales tax.

Income from sharing of lottery sales

Income from sharing of lottery sales is recognised on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of
the relevant agreement.

2. FEEFBER(E)
LN
WA W R E 2D RERE - W

(s)

[

Mz AR A RS E A R

AN (ER)sEr St 2 AR AR EZE
R :

()

(ii)

(iii)

HEURARFEEUA BEEEERE
RIE KA

REL CXFBREEEEMEL
ZWA REREAREEEHESE
A &2 {5t B A AJ A2 WS RE R o

HEFERREZ Wi G5B
FHEFEEEREZEZR N EXERE
TR AELEER MiEEEER
A 2 ARSI 2R 18 Bl & RE AR A
BIRREERZRARE-

EREZHREABRBEUA B

BRERYERLEBEITR
BN EMEREEPYEAEH
BEPEXEmERER : Mm% .28
7 [ B B [0 i Ko AT A5 W ER AR B FE 1R
RIET A B RER AT BIEIEE
3 o

XK EFEREREZIPA
REXEXEBZWABRERER
AR AR 7% M o IR A K At AH B R
BoREHERE 2S5 MEERA
B ATBREHEER

JE1E R an A
BIEXEWREBRARBERRELZE
HARBREET EERER

Annual Report 2010 =ZB—EFF{

69



70

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv) Rental income from investment properties
Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased assets. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment receivables.

(v) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised in the profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in the profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(vii) Dividend income
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the
leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of assets to the Company. All other assets are
classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Leases (continued)

()

(ii)

Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary in order to classify and account
for a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

The land element is classified as an operating lease
unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term. The building element is
classified as a finance or operating lease in the same
way as leases of other assets. The payments made
on acquiring land held under an operating lease are
recognised in the balance sheet as prepaid lease
payments on land use rights which are stated at cost
and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property using fair value
model or is held for development for sale, and if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as
if held under a finance lease.

If the prepaid lease payments on a lease of land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements at the inception of the
lease, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Operating leases

Where the Group is the lessee, payments made under
operating leases, net of any incentives received from
the lessor, are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Where
the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current
assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease period. Contingent
rentals (if any) are charged or credited to the income
statement in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=ZF

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in HK$, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded
in the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities are currencies other than
HK$. As at the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into HK$ at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and their profit
or loss items are translated into HK$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The exchange
differences arising from the translation are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange translation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
entity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into HK$ at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the balance sheet, until they have approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=-ZF

2.

—ZTF+=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Related parties (continued)
(i) the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating recourses to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of the products and
services, the nature of the production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Adoption of new or revised accounting standards

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group as
follows:

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations — Plan to
sell the controlling interest in a
subsidiary
Amendments to HKAS 39  Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement — Eligible
hedged items
Improvements to HKFRS
(2009)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to
owners
HK(Int) 5 Presentation of financial statements
— Classification by the borrower
of a term loan that contains a

repayment on demand clause

Note 2 summarise the accounting policies of the Group, after
the adoption of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group. The adoption of the above new or
revised HKFRS has no material effect on how the results and
financial position for the current or prior accounting periods
have been prepared and presented except that the following set
out information on the significant changes in accounting policies
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new or revised accounting standards

(continued)

The Group had early adopted HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS
27 (Revised) to transactions during the year ended 31
December 2009. The early application of these two revised
standards in last year had no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the current
year.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS other than HKFRS 5 do not apply to
non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations unless those HKFRS require
(i) specific disclosures in respect of non-current assets (or
disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations, or (ii) disclosures about measurement of assets
and liabilities within a disposal group that are not within
the scope of the measurement requirement of HKFRS
5 and the disclosures are not already provided in the
consolidated financial statements. This clarification has
no effect on the disclosures of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The amendment to HKAS 39 has had no material impact
on the Group's financial statements as the amendment was
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.

Improvements to HKFRS (2009) issued in May 2009
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRS. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard. While
the adoption of some of the amendments results in
changes in accounting policies, none of these amendments
has had a significant financial impact on the Group. Details
of the key amendments most applicable to the Group are
as follows:

- HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows: requires that only
expenditure that result in a recognised asset in the
balance sheet can be classified as a cash flow from
investing activities.

- The amendment introduced by the Improvements to
HKFRS (2009) omnibus standard in respect of HKAS
17, Leases, had no impact to the Group's financial
statements as the Group does not have any Hong
Kong leasehold land interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #EZZ—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new or revised accounting standards
(continued)

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 clarifies that a dividend payable
should be recognised when the dividend is appropriately
authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the
entity. Under HK(IFRIC) — Int 17, the dividend should be
measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed,
and any difference between the carrying amount of the
dividend payable and the previous carrying amount of
the assets distributed should be recognised in profit or
loss when the entity settles the dividend payable. This
accounting treatment has no material effect to the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

- HK(Int) 5, Hong Kong Interpretation 5, clarifies that term
loans that include a clause that gives the lender the
conditional right to call the loans at any time (“repayment
on demand clause”) should be classified by the borrower
as current liabilities. HK(Int) 5 requires retrospective
application. The adoption of HK(Int) 5 has had no material
impact on the Group's financial statements as the
Interpretation’s conclusions were consistent with policies
already adopted by the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the
Group and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

The Group’s management makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(j). The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates (note 19) and assumptions. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of goodwill
and the impairment (if any) in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

(b) Allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

(c) Write-down of obsolete and slow-moving inventories
The Group writes down obsolete and slow-moving
inventories to net realisable value based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectation of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Write-downs are applied to inventories
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the inventories may be obsolete or slow-moving. The
identification of obsolete or slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the inventories
and charges in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Income taxes

Deferred tax asset in relation to the unused tax losses of
approximately HK$205,223,000 (2009: HK$148,800,000)
was not recognised in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less
than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in the income
statement for the period in which such a reversal takes
place.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
expenses in the year in which such determination is made.

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by an entity.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other assets
used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a
finance lease), the Group's financial statements account
for the portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for as investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in making its
judgement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/ 5.
GAINS, NET
Turnover represents commission income and handling fee
income, interest income and income from provision of lottery

machines and related services.

An analysis of the Group's turnover, other income and other
(losses)/gains, net is as follows:

R HitRAREM (BE) WREFE

EXBRASUARTFEELA FERARE
HEEH R ARG WA -

AEEMEEE AR AREM (BE) K

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Turnover EERE
Commission income and handling fee income A& KA K FEE WA 4,114 4,765
Interest income from RERTEEZFEWA
— banks —iR1T 5 10
- margin clients —FEREP 274 397
— loan receivables —ERER - 6,825
Income from provision of lottery machines and  H2 % Z= # & #8 78 AR 75 Ug A
related services 1,609,935 1,260,072
1,614,328 1,272,069
Other income Hit g A
Interest income on bank deposits AT AR B WA 1,022 698
Sundry income FEERA 15,806 3,547
Dividend income from listed securities EmEHFZREHA - 38
Rental income from REUNTEEZEE WA
— investment property — &Y 112 140
— sub-letting of rented premises —HAWES A 5,492 3,662
22,432 8,085
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (B58) WEF8E
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of HEBRABERANEFENER
financial assets at fair value through BEZ (BR) W F5E
profit or loss (4,038) 3,487
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets BBBREANEFENSREEY
at fair value through profit or loss ARME (BE) e (2,714) 16,009
Exchange gains b 5 U % 1,052 =
Fair value gain on investment property BEMERRERE 174 =
(5,526) 19,496
1,631,234 1,299,650
Total interest income on financial assets not at BB EIER AN EFENCRHE E
fair value through profit or loss Z A B 1,301 7,930
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %% R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, i.e. the Group’s Executive Directors, for the
purposes of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance, the Group has presented the following two
reportable segments:

- Lottery business

- Financial services

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transactions are conducted in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the parties. The
amounts reported for the prior year have been restated in
conformity with the current year’s presentation.

The Board assesses the performance of the business segments
based on profit before taxation without allocation of
finance income/(costs), which is consistent with those in the
consolidated financial statements.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Board for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2010 and 2009 is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business Segments

DEER (E)
E ]

(a) The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2010 (a) BE_T—ZTF+-_A=1+T—HIEFEZ
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2010 are DEIEBERNR_TE—ZF+_A=+—H
as follows: ZOBEERBENT

As at and for the year ended
31 December 2010
R-ZE—ZBF+-A=+—HK
BEZALFE
Lottery Financial

business services Total

KEEK & BRI &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

Turnover 0 1,609,935 4,393 1,614,328

Segment results Pal= e 710,980 (4,875) 706,105

Net unallocated expenses Ko fam L F5E (25,974)

Profit before taxation Bk 5 A g ) 680,131

Taxation T8 (35,677)

Profit for the year F 2 5 A 644,454
Assets BE

Segment assets DEEE 3,894,160 40,937 3,935,097

Unallocated assets ROBEEE 173,878

Total assets wEE 4,108,975
Liabilities BE

Segment liabilities NEBE 303,331 19,011 322,342

Unallocated liabilities ROBEBEE 12,525

Total liabilities FEN=R

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Business Segments (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2009

and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2009 are

PEER (F&)

EXAI(E)

(a) (&)
BE_ZZhFE+-_A=+—HILEEZ
PHEERR_TTAF+=_A=+—8

as follows: ZOHMEERBERT
As at and for the year ended
31 December 2009
R-ETZNFE+-_A=+—8Bx&
HEZBILEFE
Lottery Financial
business services Total
KB & B AR A&t
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET
Turnover B 1,260,072 11,997 1,272,069
Segment results DEBFELE 460,327 (774) 459,553
Net unallocated expenses RO TR (9,316)
Profit before taxation B B4 A VA 450,237
Taxation Bi1E (34,082)
Profit for the year F[E = A 416,155
Assets BE
Segment assets DEE E 3,445,365 71,388 3,516,753
Unallocated assets ROBEE 274,722
Total assets BmEE 3,791,475
Liabilities 8E
Segment liabilities DEBEE 264,716 34,893 299,609
Unallocated liabilities ADEEE 45,195
Total liabilities FEN=K

344,804
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Business Segments (continued)
(b) Other segment information

aBWER (B)
EBDE (H)
(b) RfttrEFEH

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-T5+-A=1+—HLFE

Lottery Financial
business services Total
KREK S E R &t
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Other information H & R
Depreciation and amortisation 1 88 B 5H 64,855 504 65,359
Allowance for impairment of RIZ R B B
bad and doubtful debts (201) 231 30
Capital expenditure BEARREZ 134,491 281 134,772
For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-_ZTEAE+-_A=+—HILFE
Lottery Financial
business services Total
HEEK S ER A&F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Other information E b &
Depreciation and amortisation Ir & B 5N 49,301 510 49,811
Allowance for impairment of RERRBERE
bad and doubtful debts 62 - 62
Bad debts written off 122 AR 1 85 252 170 422
Capital expenditure BEARRS 67,160 = 67,160
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEHR (B)

Geographical Segments
The Group's business segments operate in two main
geographical areas.

ih 2 7 5P
AREB RS BB EE E i [E & % o

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2010
R-B-F5+t-A=1t-HREZZALFE

Segment
results and
profit/(loss)
before Total Total Capital
Turnover taxation assets liabilities expenditure
D WEE
KRB AT
B/
RS (B8) HEE BEE BRRX
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong 0 4,393 (30,849) 69,815 31,536 281
The PRC H 1,609,935 710,980 4,039,160 303,331 134,491
1,614,328 680,131 4,108,975 334,867 134,772
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2009
RZZENF+ZA=T-BREZEZBLER
Segment
results and
profit/(loss)
before Total Total Capital
Turnover taxation assets liabilities  expenditure
DEEE
KRB
i/
BEE (B8) mEE Baf BARFX
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET
Hong Kong EN0) 11,997 (10,090) 76,610 80,088 -
The PRC H 1,260,072 460,327 3,714,865 264,716 67,160
1,272,069 450,237 3,791,475 344,804 67,160
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(F)
Information About Major Customers FEEFER
None of the customer contributed over 10% of the total ZMERNTEEMZEP(HASEEEESEFEI0%
turnover of the Group during both years. LA E e
7. STAFF COSTS 7. EBEEAE
2010 2009
—ZT-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EREERE 98,625 93,641
Bonuses TEAT 608 -
MPF contributions SRIR® R 386 387
Social security costs ft 2 R K A 4,118 3,592
Employee share option benefits & B BB AR A 4,965 5,193
108,702 102,813
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HMKEA
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TThF
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERREZFE 3,377 1,064
Interest on client payables with no fixed EREERAZ
repayment terms FEf & B RIEFLE 7 11
Interest on other loan wholly repayable HARAFAZHEEZ
within five years H 8 FHF & - 533
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities BRABRIFEZANLEBTEN
not at fair value through profit or loss EPHABBRZANERZ BT 3,384 1,608
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10.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

The Group's profit before taxation is stated after charging the

Bk Bt A1 38 A

AREBERRBANGE R Z2 5 AT E MR A TSR

following:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETAF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B &
— audit services — B %R 2,782 2,479
— other services — H th AR %5 656 385
Allowance for impairment of bad and RIBRBEREFRE
doubtful debts, net 30 62
Bad debts written off, net 22 AR B R - 422
Cost of inventories sold (note 26(b)) HERE ZKA (Hat26(b)) 189,746 239,428
Forfeiture of deposits for acquisition of RWEARELHERAEZ S
leasehold land use rights 3,201 -
Research and development costs i 7t I 7 B A AR 13,137 10,552
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERZH2EE
equipment 720 8,853
Depreciation and amortisation on LA IE B B 4T & K
— property, plant and equipment —%E WERZE 57,390 41,775
— prepaid lease payments on land use rights — T R 2 TR AR A1 5k 775 758
— intangible assets —EREE 7,194 7,278
Operating lease rentals in respect of RATEEZ2KEHERS
— office premises and warehouse —WAREMEREE 32,004 29,983
— machinery — 23 1,163 1,136
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEME

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong
Ordinance, is as follows:

Kong Companies

AEEEEMERE EMRUREE (AFK

By F161EFE TR M T ¢

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees: wWe

Executive Directors HITES 150 120
Independent Non-executive Directors B IEBMITES 450 360
600 480

Other emoluments for executive Directors: NITES 2 HMENS :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RAREENZ 1,210 3,610
MPF contributions RIE S N 12 12
1,822 4,102
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
(@) Independent Non-executive Directors

10. EEM< (&)
(a) BYFHTES

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive Directors were

ENTEYRTET2BSMT :

as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
YUEN Wai Ho B & = 150 120
CHOW Siu Ngor /N5 150 120
LEE Ka Lun =R B 150 120
450 360

There were no other emoluments payable to the
Independent Non-executive Directors during the years. In
addition, no remuneration was paid by the Group to any of
the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office (2009: Nil).

FA BEEGENTEIEATESZME -
SN - AN SR B 30 M (A B = SN AER B S ERIMA
AEERMARZ R SERB2HE (ZTTH
FE)

(b) Executive Directors (b) HMITES
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total

Fees in kind contributions emoluments
e RER RER
wnE BHEANE B ME@E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHAT
2010 —T-—TF
Executive Directors: MITES:
CHAN How Chung, Victor PRETE - 1,210 12 1,222
BOO Chun Lon AR Uz 3 150 - - 150
12 1,372

150 1,210
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEME (&)
(b) Executive Directors (continued) (b) BMITESE (&)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
e REMR RIRAEF
Fiok BHE e T EI LK Pl <& 42 58
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
Fax FAT FHT FAT
2009 —EENF
Executive Directors: HITES:
CHAN How Chung, Victor e - 3,610 12 3,622
BOO Chun Lon AR U 5 120 - - 120
120 3,610 12 3,742
There was no arrangement under which any Director FAWEETLEMEZEZEURELRER
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the BEMME 2 ZHE - b REEY B E
years. In addition, no remuneration was paid by the Group EXHEMMEEAMALRER R MARK
to any of the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon ZERENEBIHE(ZEENF E) -
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2009: Nil).
11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 11. EE2ERSHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the FArEERERaTMATzHBEE—% (=
Group, one (2009: one) was a Director of the Company whose ZTNF:—R)ARFESZ EMEEHR L
emoluments were included in the disclosures in note 10 above. XHF1I0 - EBMUE(ZZEZAF :ME)A L
The emoluments of the remaining four (2009: four) individuals ZBEmT

were as follows:

2010 2009

—E-EF —TTNEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe RPREERRE 6,798 6,118
MPF contributions BIESHK 33 48
6,831 6,166
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For

11.

12.

the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZZ—TH+=

A=+—HIEFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) 11. AEBEHFMAL (BE)
Their remuneration was within the following bands: FEzHecBELT :
2010 2009
—E—EF —ZENF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE BB AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,00075 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L =1,500,0007%8 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ £ &£2,000,000/%8 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7C £2,500,0007% 7T 2 1
4 4
In addition to the above, one of the employees was granted B EMXFTEN REE_ZT—ZSFR_ZTTN
share options of the Group for the year ended 31 December F+-A=+—HLEFE EF—REEERAE
2010 and 2009. Details of the share options schemes are set out EEZERE - EABRES S 2 IBENME
in note 33. 33 ©
TAXATION 12. BiE
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is made in the financial AN & B 1 72N F 2 30 4 (R (] (& 5T B AR Bl s A
statements as the Group has no estimated assessable profits for At R B HRERALEELEBRNEHERE
the year (2009: Nil). ZEThFE) o

One of the jointly controlled entities, Beijing Guard Libang
Technology Co Ltd, and two of the subsidiaries, j% & i 48 5t & &l
R AR AT and Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd, of the
Group's lottery business in the PRC are subject to a preferential
tax rate of 15% as they are recognised as high technology
enterprises for the year ended 31 December 2010.

According to the provisions stipulated in the tax circular, Caishui
[2000] No. 25, one of the subsidiaries of the Group's lottery
business in the PRC, Er IR AR K AR A A,
from income tax for two years commencing from the first year

is exempted

of profitable operations, followed by a 50% reduction for
the following three years. The first profit-making year of this
subsidiary was 2007 and thus it enjoyed 50% reduction for the
year ended 31 December 2010. The applicable income tax rate
for current year was 12.5%.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

12. TAXATION (continued)

Two of the subsidiaries of the Group’s lottery business in the
PRC, Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd and #3844
HIBERERS AR AT were established and operate at the
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone of the PRC for which the
applicable preferential tax rate was 22% (2009: 20%).

According to the provisions stipulated in the tax circular,
Jingdishuigi [2009] No. 50, one of the subsidiaries of the
Group's lottery business in the PRC, Elottery Vision (Beijing)
Technology Co Ltd, is exempted from income tax for two years
commencing from 2009, followed by a 50% reduction for the
following three years to 2013.

The applicable income tax rate for the remaining subsidiaries of
the Group's lottery business in the current year is 25% (2009:

12.

BE(8)
AEBVEZEBRTBBEZMRHBR A FIMH
& B M AR A 7 BRI T B 2SR R A
RIEBR A AR BRI E R @A R EE
ZRBRZERERBERA2% (ZETLF:
20% ) °

AR B 75 48 A B 4B SR [2009]505% 7] AR 2 {6
X AKEREERBER KRB EZMEAR A
FBRAK (LFR)MRERATH _TThFR
S ERERRBAAEH MEREE—Z2—=
F 1= F B AR B

HRAKREXEXRB 2 EBIMEB LR Z 25
REZSH (MEBE)EER AEZFERIARA

25%) as their tax holiday and concession periods, if any, have FEZEBAMEMMER25% (ZET L F:
expired. 25% ) °
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income Relmk AR 2 RIBRIE
statement represents:
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZETNF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Current tax: BHIE:
— PRC income tax — B TR 24,702 33,623
— (Over)/underprovision in respect of —BAEE (BEEE) BETR
previous year (2,513) 3,301
22,189 36,924
Deferred tax: EAETIA :
Deferred taxation relating to the origination FHEAREBEONEREZRE Y
and reversal of temporary differences EIERRIE (f77£25)
(note 25) 13,412 (2,190)
Attributable to changes in tax rates TR EB)EAE (H15E25)
(note 25) 76 (652)
Taxation charge I K 35,677 34,082
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HIFE
12. TAXATION (continued) 12. BiE (&)
77"%@ﬁﬁ#fﬁﬁﬂZﬁEEﬁiﬁEﬁLZ%@E(L‘/\

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from

92

the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic

taxation rates applicable to profit of the consolidated companies T~

is as follows:

ERREEE

Bl M 2 A R ETE ) AAE

2010 2009

—z-%f B I

HK$'000 HK$000

FHET FET

Profit before taxation R 54 A1 A 680,131 450,237
Taxation at the domestic income tax rate of BTG E16.5%

16.5% (2009: 16.5%) (ZZTNF:16.5% )78 2/HE 112,222 74,288
Tax effect of income not subject to taxation BARBBA 2 BB E (24,118) (16,549)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible HEIEmMS AR 2R 2

for taxation purposes MIEZE 10,444 6,197
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses HEMIBE B2 HIBXE (1) (1,868)
Tax effect of temporary differences not AERERFER 2 MIBLE

recognised (97) 131
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERR G BB 2 METE 7,399 6,659
Effect of tax exemptions granted to FREEAREEFIBEREZ

the PRC subsidiaries TE (68,431) (37,069)
(Over)/under-provision of current tax AFEE BB GBERE)

in previous year BETE (2,513) 3,301
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBVAERL S 2B R R 2

operating in other jurisdictions TR EZE 696 (356)
Change in opening deferred taxation EAKEREE M 5| Bz BT

balances resulting from changes in MIBRRES)

applicable tax rates 76 (652)
Taxation charge HIEL 35,677 34,082
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13.

14.

15.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

DIVIDENDS 13. KA
2010 2009
—E—ZF —TTNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interim dividend declared and paid of Bk &K HR S F AR
0.35 HK cent (2009: 0.18 HK cent) T 38 A%0.35 11l
per ordinary share (ZZZRF:0.18%1l) 27,031 13,633
Proposed final dividend of 0.56 HK cent EEAHRE SR T AEAR0.S6HE U
(2009: 0.43 HK cent) per ordinary share (ZZZTNF:0.4381) 43,608 33,083
70,639 46,716

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and has not been recognised as a
liability at the balance sheet date.

The final dividend of HK$33,175,000 for financial year 2009 was
approved and paid in financial year 2010.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company to the extent of approximately HK$191,729,000
(2009: approximately HK$213,120,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year divided by the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year.

14.

15.

REEZRZRRARBAT AR AR ERE K
RBFERE LIERTAMER  WARNAEE H#E
RRAE-

—ETNFHHREE 2 REKRE33,175,000/%
TEEHE WER-ZE—ZFEHHREEANIR
fif o

KAREERFEARGFEEERR

Bt AEARAMBEREFNAQRERFE
AFE(RF % Fh & F)49191,729,000% ¢ (=
TT N 49213,120,00087T) °

SREF

() SREXRH
SREARFIREAD T WA B AR
75 B4 R R IR N E BT IR 2 M0
BTG E -

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Profit attributable to equity holders of RpalEmtsA AELRF
the Company (in thousand HK$) (FHT) 636,016 424,581
Weighted average number of ordinary BT mR 2 T &
shares in issue (in thousand) (F%) 7,699,925 7,495,753
Basic earnings per share BREREF 8.26 cents 1l 5.66 cents Ll
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares, being the weighted average

15. BERER (B)
(b) BREEER

BREERMNBEANFEERA ARA
7R 52 B 4 2 0 A R DA B AR 2 DN T 15 B
AE-ZBRBEDAESRERNBIZER

ERTEBRNETFHERBRRREA

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year as BREATEMBRITEBREMEERZTZ
used in the basic earnings per share calculation and the LR INEF S E-
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on deemed exercise
of all share options outstanding during the year.
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
Profit for the year, used in the basic and FE& 4] AAFTESRERR
diluted earnings per share calculation BERN (TET)
(in thousand HK$) 636,016 424,581
Weighted average number of ordinary AU ESRERB ZFA
shares in issue during the year used BEETTARMETHE (TR)
in the basic earnings per share
calculation (in thousand) 7,699,925 7,495,753
Weighted average number of ordinary BERFEANRRETEMARITE
shares assumed to have been issued at EREMEEET AR
no consideration on deemed exercise nEFHE (FR)
of all share options outstanding during
the year (in thousand) 27,232 44,483
7,727,157 7,540,236
Diluted earnings per share TR E R T 8.23 cents fli 5.63 cents flli
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

—RFE+_H=+t—BLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z

16. X -BERRE

The Group RE
Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold Lottery fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction-
buildings  improvements machines  equipment machinery vehicles  in-progress Total
HENE B %8
L £§ YRR RkifE HERES RE HRIR At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
AT FAT AT FHT AT FHT TAT FET
Note)
(Hi)
Cost A&
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-A 22,429 17,712 97,313 30,641 47,694 9,082 - 24871
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WENBARMES - 240 - 5,048 = 703 = 5,991
Additions AE - 5492 16,600 10,199 33,290 1,579 - 67,160
Disposals and write off {HE R - - (13,545) (94) (11,807) (484) - (25,930)
Reclassification ENAR - - 5,629 (5,629) - - - -
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 R=FFAFT=A=+-BR=
2-24-3-H 22,429 23,444 105,997 40,165 69,177 10,880 - 272,092
Additions AE - 6,504 12,930 4887 44,237 2,198 64,016 134,772
Exchange realignment SHERZ 522 385 2,465 595 1,609 215 - 5,821
Disposals and write off HERIH - - - (1,199 (17,438) (810) - (19,447)
At 31 December 2010 RZ8-BE+ZF=1-H 22,951 30,333 121,392 44,448 97,585 12,513 64,016 393,238
Accumulated depreciation iﬂ?é
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-R 1,353 6,803 42,857 20,238 14,317 2,275 - 87,903
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WERBARMES - 73 - 2,698 - 292 - 3,063
Charge for the year EENR 501 2335 13,518 428 19,759 1434 - 41,775
Disposals and write off iHE R = = (12,7117) (29) (3.995) (336) - (17,077)
Reclassification by - - 1,921 (1,921) - - - -
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 R=EEAF+ZA=+-HR=
5-%5-f-A 1,854 9211 45,579 25,214 30,141 3,665 - 115,664
Charge for the year EEHR 513 2,825 20,626 4717 26,848 1,861 - 57,390
Disposals and write off HERME - - - (979) (17,011) (409) = (18,659)
Exchange realignment HERZ 43 82 1,060 1 701 79 = 2,236
At 31 December 2010 R=F-BEt-A=1-A 2,40 12,118 67,265 29223 40419 5,196 - 156,631
Net book value BEFE
At 31 December 2010 R=§-BEt-A=1-A 20,541 18,215 54,127 15,225 57,166 1317 64,016 236,607
At 31 December 2009 RZEEAFTZA=1-A 20,575 4,233 60,418 14,951 39,036 7,215 - 156,428

Note: All leasehold buildings are situated outside Hong Kong and are held
under medium term leases.

The Company

The Company has no property, plant and equipment as at 31

December 2010 (2009: Nil).

Hrat: mAEMRERTHMNERIAINGE - A HHE

RS EC
RAF
EREAR-E—FF+= ﬂ +T—BHAEEYE

@%&?&%(7?? ) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE RIGHTS 17. tfERE2ANEONR
The Group REE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETRF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost @S
At beginning of the year REH 38,063 38,063
Exchange realignment 4N BE 3 B 800 -
At end of the year RF 4R 38,863 38,063
Accumulated amortisation S
At beginning of the year R E ) 1,943 1,185
Amortisation for the year PINCIEEE 7 775 758
Exchange realignment SN B 2= 42 _
At end of the year R F 4R 2,760 1,943
Net book value AR FE
At end of the year REF 36,103 36,120
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights are AEERHEELHME T FERENERUNE
outside Hong Kong with medium term leases. BIEN BIRPHEERA -
At 31 December 2010, bank borrowings of approximately RZZE—ZTF+ZA=+—HB B&Y
HK$58,140,000 (2009: HK$56,818,000) were secured on 58,140,000 7L (ZZ & L4 : 56,818,000/
leasehold buildings and land use rights for the carrying values TL) ZRITIEEAREE D 54 &17,792,000
of approximately HK$17,792,000 (2009: HK$17,757,000) and BT (ZZTZTNF:17,757,0008 ) &
HK$31,220,000 (2009: HK$31,220,000) respectively (note 37). 31,220,000 T (ZZEZF L% :31,220,000
BI)ZHEEFT R AREERE (M E
37) o
The Company AT
The Company has no prepaid lease payments on land use rights ARARIRZE—EFF+_A=+—HEE L
as at 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil). EREZBANEHNNR(ZZZAEFE &) -
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19.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. REWH
The Group REE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETRF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REH 962 962
Fair value gain AR ERE 174 =
Exchange realignment 4N BE 3 B 23 -
At end of the year PGS 1,159 962
The investment property of the Group is situated outside Hong REBZIREMEMREBRIN WiRFHEE

Kong and held under medium term lease. It

purpose. The investment property of the Group was revalued as

at 31 December 2010 by the Directors’ estimat
market conditions (2009: on the open market

by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional

valuers).

The Company
The Company has no investment property as

is held for rental

ion under current
existing use basis

Bff) -

ZNN

at 31 December ARRR=

BE ERBES B AEEZRENER =
T-BET-A=t-BREFETHRRE
B(-FEAF mAEFEARAR (—MB
T EEERR) BAR TSR 8B E AT

T-FE+-A=+-BUMRE

2010 (2009: Nil). ME(ZZZNF E) -
GOODWILL 19. &8
HK$000
TET
Cost R A
At 1 January 2009 RZZTZTNF—H—H 1,479,022
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 45) W BB /8 A Bl PTEE A (K7 aF45) 215,244
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 RZZBEZNF+ZA=+—HEK
—E—FTF—-H—H 1,694,266
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 45) W BE M BB A R P EE A& (AT at45) 8,000
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZF+=-A=+—H 1,702,266
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19. GOODWILL (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill represents the goodwill arising
from acquisition in investments of lottery business.

In accordance with the Group's accounting policies, the Group
has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill arising from
acquisition in investments of lottery business by reference to the
cash-generating units’ value in use and determined that such
goodwill has not been impaired. The recoverable amount for
the cash-generating units in relation to the lottery business was
determined based on value-in-use calculations, which use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering the operation periods ranging from 13
to 15 years of the businesses with discount rates ranging from
14.33% to 15.27% per annum. The discount rates used reflect
specific risks relating to the businesses and the growth rate of
3% is in line with the forecasts adopted by the lotteries industry.

In the opinion of the management, the lotteries industry in
China will grow along with its economy in the coming decades
and remains as the main contribution to the good causes
which benefit the general public in China, and is similar with
the lottery history of other countries of the World. As a major
participant in the lottery industry in the PRC over 5 years, the
Group possesses an in-depth knowledge of the industry. The
management believed that the projected cash flows based on
financial budgets/forecasts for periods ranging from 13 to 15
years are reliable.

The goodwill is included in the lottery business segment
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

A=+—HIEFE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=-ZF

19.

[k A€-D
HECEAERRKBREERB2REME
EZEE-

RBRASEZ A BER AEEEL2RBESESL
BAZFRAEETHEAREREEEB 2KE
FTEEAMEZAIKECHE WETXEHERE R
B-BYZEKEHsRSELABUZAKRES
B IREREBENEEAMEBETE - ZAEKBIN
EEEHETRET=FE+RAFEBKLEES
ZHBHEEAEEZRSREEAN BN TEF
14.33%%15.27% 2 BhIR KT E - Fi{E A 2 B3R
ERMEEEEBIFERR  M3%2ERE
DEAERETEMKERAZER -

EEEREA HEERITERRRE T FiFHEL
ERSERE WHEERFERZREIR &
BHRRAR BEHERAZEXEENEREL K
SEERATRAYEXIECERTF BAR

EfTEmH - EREMRG REMBEE T8
FEZtt=FETRAFHBENRSREERN

E

HEEEENBREN A RE Y EEKH
Ao



20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

20. EREE

Deferred
Computer development  Operating Technical
software costs right  know-how Total
EEME 1
G RA RERE SRR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAET FAET FAET
Cost D%
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZEEhE—F—H 9,543 23,914 31,819 58,823 124,099
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries BB ARESE 284 - - - 284
At 31 December 2009 and RZZEZENF+ZA=+—HEK
1 January 2010 —T-25—-F—H 9,827 23,914 31,819 58,823 124,383
Exchange realignment SN 228 556 740 = 1,524
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZF+-A=+—H 10,055 24,470 32,559 58,823 125,907
Accumulated amortisation EHE
At 1 January 2009 R=FENF—F—H 4,565 2,652 - - 7,217
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WEEN B A RIFTE £ 225 - - - 225
Charge for the year FRMER 900 6,378 - = 7,278
At 31 December 2009 and RZZEAF+ZA=+—-HK
1 January 2010 —Z-ZF%—-f—H 5,690 9,030 - - 14,720
Charge for the year FEMNR 667 6,527 - - 7,194
Exchange realignment SME R 133 210 - - 343
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-ZF+-A=+—H 6,490 15,767 - - 22,257
Net book value REEE
At 31 December 2010 R=ZZ-ZF+tZA=t-H 3,565 8,703 32,559 58,823 103,650
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNE+T_A=+—H 4,137 14,884 31,819 58,823 109,663
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
The Group

(a)

Computer software of carrying value of approximately
HK$3,565,000 (2009: HK$4,137,000) is the intangible
assets acquired and possessed by the lottery business.
The intangible assets have definite useful lives and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years.

Deferred development costs of carrying value of
approximately HK$8,703,000 (2009: HK$14,884,000)
represent expenditure incurred by the Group on
development of computer software and related technology
for the lottery business of the Group in order to meet with
the market development and the specific requirements of
the lottery business and its individual customers.

The intangible assets have definite useful lives and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

Operating right of carrying value of approximately
HK$32,559,000 (2009: HK$31,819,000) represents
expenditure incurred by the Group on obtaining an
operating right for supplying the system and equipment
in a lottery centre. The operating right will be renewable
without additional conditions and payment upon the expiry
date of 30 June 2012 if the Group provides satisfactory
services to the customers. The Group intends to renew
the operating right indefinitely and evidence supports its
ability to do so. There has been no compelling challenge
to the operating right renewal in other provinces. The
technology developed is not expected to be substituted by
another competitor at any time in the foreseeable future.
Therefore, the operating right is expected to contribute to
the Group's net cash inflows indefinitely.

Accordingly, the operating right is therefore treated as
having an indefinite useful life and is not amortised until
its useful life is determined to be finite. The operating right

was tested for impairment annually.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

20. EREE (&)
AEE

(a)

AR T {H 493,565,000 70 (— T F hL 4 :
4,137,000 70 ) 2 B R4 AT EEBH
WERBEENEFEE wEBVEEAE
WERIAFER Wik AIAFER =+
FHE -

B T {8 498,703,000 7T (=TT hL 4 ¢
14,884,000/ 7T ) 2 ¥ 3E 5 3 K A B 15 A&
SEATREAMEERE FEEBKLEE
FEENREER REREBRETNK
S RAAB R TR B X -

wEAEABRETMER L RMA
TRERSE+ -

BR M {8 932,559,000/ T (— T T h & :
31,819,000/ 7T ) Z 4L & 1 B AN & B 3t
BERREEROIRHRG KRG K&
FEAZRASZ MASEREFRERHERE
R BRI HHE -—E——FE A=+
BERMBIMEHE RS RABER T EEL
ERE - AEEBE BHEELEHE MBE
BENMBANAEEGLEN EEMER
FH - SEALEREWRBE E(TEARE-
B B2 £ i T ER S & 50 AT R AR 4 L b %
FHFFARNR AL BHEEES—EAR
REBMBRIRES RAFHE -

Hit  KERUTeEEEFR D ARE A
PRI R FEFE AT 1T i o R 2
EETFETRENR-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group (continued)

(d) Technical know-how of carrying value of approximately
HK$58,823,000 (2009: HK$58,823,000) represents
the technology, technical information, know-how and
experience in relation to the lottery business injected by a
joint venture partner. The useful life shall cover the joint
venture period which shall continue in effect until the
termination of the joint venture agreement or the joint
venture partner ceases to be a shareholder, whichever
is the earlier. The Directors opined that the technical
know-how is with indefinite useful life and is tested for
impairment annually.

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group
has assessed the recoverable amounts of operating right and
the technical know-how based on value-in-use calculations,
which use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the management covering the seven- to fifteen-
year operation period of the business with discount rates
ranging from 14.12% to 14.33% per annum. The discount rates
used reflect specific risks relating to the business and the growth
rate of 3% is in line with the forecasts adopted by the lotteries
industry.

The Company
The Company has no intangible assets as at 31 December 2010
(2009: Nil).

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF LEASEHOLD LAND
USE RIGHTS

At 31 December 2009, the amount represented deposits paid
to the relevant government authority for acquisition of a
medium term leasehold land use rights in the PRC. The amount
included relevant deed tax thereon capitalised. During the year,
the deposits paid were forfeited on expiry of the acquisition
agreement, the deposits were then written off to profit or loss.

20. EREE (&)

21.

REE (&)

(d) BEM{E#58,823,000/8 7t (Z T T N4 :
58,823,000/ T ) 2 B T HE P M H B 8 &
BEBHEAZEEEB 2HMT BT
B BPIA RASER o 0] IR B =R ER
EEH MEEHEAEMBERIEXEE
BHETBABRRE (UREEBE)JIDALE
BEHR -BZRE HTEMARZEAF
W AREERETE  BINASTFETREN

an °©

BRASBZEFBE AKBEEREERE
B EEFGHEEE R RMEPIMEZ /U
SR -ZAEERNEBER ALY RELFE
THEFERBREH M BRER/EEZRER
B - BN FEF14.12%F14.33% 2 fEH =
AE-MEAZHARRREZBEER 2 FER
B M3%ZIERETINEERMAFAB TR

ZNVN
RARARZZE—ZEF+_A=+—HUEEFR
BE(ZZTNFE) -

BAHELHEREZT S

RZZEZAF+_A=+—H ZoBERKE
TEPHEELMERENE XN TERERA
BEZAE ZEHEREENML2EHER -
FA AN 2EKEGZED BB i
FEREAT R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=-ZF

22. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

—ZTF+=

A=+—HIEFE

22. RMIB AR 2=

The Company AT
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETAF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted share, at cost EETRRG  RAAAR 291,309 291,309
Impairment losses BEEE (127,000) (127,000)
164,309 164,309
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U T /B8 2 B 3RIE 2,829,433 2,432,659
Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts REEREEE (66,000) (66,000)
2,763,433 2,366,659
2,927,742 2,530,968
Amount due from a subsidiary JE W B /B8 2 B R IE 200,000 222,000
Amount due to a subsidiary FE A~ Fft /BB 1 R 5K I8 88,907 -

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest

JE WL, & 1< BT /B A A1 5K

RIR S EEA BRI

free and have no fixed term of repayment. In the opinion
of the Directors, the amounts of HK$2,829,433,000 (2009:
HK$2,432,659,000) will not be repayable within 12 months
of the balance sheet date and are accordingly, classified as
non-current. The remaining amounts of HK$200,000,000
(2009: HK$222,000,000) and HK$88,907,000 (2009: Nil)
are repayable or settled within one year. The amounts due
from subsidiaries of approximately HK$2,059,503,000 (2009:
HK$555,701,000) were impaired. The amount of allowance
for impairment was HK$66,000,000 as at 31 December 2010
(2009: HK$66,000,000). It is assessed that a portion of these
receivables is expected to be recovered. All other balances
of amounts due from subsidiaries are neither past due nor
impaired.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

EIETEERP-EERA" 2,829,433,000/% 7T
(ZZEZT A% :2,432,659,000/8 70 ) 2 XBE T
CREERRIZEANEE BltDEAER
Eﬁ o #4 N £ %8200,000,000 7T ( = BT S 4
222,000,000/ 7T ) % 88,907,000/ T (= T Z
NE E)EAR—FREEIRIF - BEHBA
7] 2 FIE#92,059,503,0008 7T (— BT HF:
555,701,000 L) ERE- R T —TF+=
R=+—HBHREEREA66,000,0008T (==
T N4 1 66,000,000 7T ) - IR IR 14 - TEHIRZ
£ e W FRIE — S0 T IR B o BT L e UL F B A
A R IB 45 #r35 4 d HA SlOR(E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, has a 50%
interest in a joint venture, Happy Sun Technologies Ltd and its
subsidiaries (together as “Happy Sun Group”). The following
amounts represent the Group's 50% share of the assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2010, and sales and results of the
joint venture for the year. They are included in the Group's
balance sheet and income statement as follows:

23.

REELENER
AEBBBREZBEWBARIIFAE S E R EHappy
Sun Technologies Ltd& EKi B A A (£ B A
[Happy Sun&Bl])50%#m - NIl eBAEAS
EEZAYCER-—E—ZEE+_A=1+—H
ZEERBE URKNFEHEREENS0%E
HoBHSHEOMALEBEZEERABR Ik
KA FBEOT

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETAF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Assets BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE 116,641 100,534
Current assets mENE B 99,935 95,509
216,576 196,043

Liabilities 8&
Current liabilities mBaE 8,270 4,843
Net assets BEEFE 208,306 191,200
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ZETNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Income KA 68,685 60,533
Expenses 53 49,611 42,896
Profit before taxation Bk 7 A1 g ) 19,074 17,637
Taxation T8 3,961 2,803
Profit after taxation B %1 1% Ja A 15,113 14,834
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest AEERGELHEZERTEEENKIAERE

in the joint venture, and no contingent liabilities of the venture MELREARFTEXIREBE -

itself.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=-ZF

—ZTF+=

23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

A=+—HIEFE

23. REELENER (B)

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ R-T— ‘1‘:)51 =+—H AEBERIETA]
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BEEEHOsEEEERKREMNKEES

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: mEmT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET

Land and buildings T RAEF

Within one year —FR 477 686
In the second to fifth year inclusive EF_EZFRF (BEEEMSF) - 466
477 1,152
Details of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entities, which n= TFEF+_A=1t—H AEFEZFEH

are unlisted and limited liability companies, as at 31 December

2010 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

H%I%l ER(RELTRAREERE)WFRE

mF

Principal
activities and

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered

Effective

Name registration place of operation capital interest held
BRITRE,
=L B3/ R 1At B TEXBREEDBN EME RS Fris B
Happy Sun Technologies Ltd British Virgin Islands Investment holding 4 ordinary shares of 50%
RBRXEE in the PRC US$1 each
R BUE TR B R AR FRREE
1R & Bk
BEFBEEERE ORI BRAA PRC Investment holding USD12,000,000 50%
H in the PRC 12,000,000 7T
R BUE TR B R
RINEM B ERAR AR PRC Investment holding RMB54,606,000 50%
i in the PRC AR #54,606,0007T
R BE TR B R
Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd PRC Provision of systems and ~ RMB&9,180,000 50%
ERXEFNABEZERAA H equipment in the lottery A K#89,180,0007T

24. STATUTORY DEPOSITS

Statutory deposits are the deposits in various exchanges

and clearing house relating to securities and futures dealing

businesses.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

market in the PRC
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24. EEESE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. IEEBLIE
The Group REE
(a) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised (a) BERRECHEEE(&8HFE)
Fair value

adjustments on
prepaid lease
payments on

Allowance for land use
impairment rights and Other
of loans buildings on Revaluation taxable
and other business of temporary
receivables  combinations properties differences Total
ERAHER
TERER
ERR E?Zﬁﬁ#ﬂﬁ‘]
HipEWRE NRAfEZ Hit R
AERE ’R REAR ELLES HERZR &t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000
FET FET FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2009 WZZEENE—-F—-H 1,535 (640) (3,650) (43,186) (45,941)
Attributable to changes in tax rates (note 12) TR EEE(L (Hi212) = = = 652 652
Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries ~ EBKBENBEATZRE

(note 45) (Hite5) - - - (2,659) (2,659)
Credited to the consolidated income statement  sf AR & MER (Ai12)

(note 12) - - - 2,190 2,190
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 RZZENFTZA=T-BR

—ZT-ZF-f-H 1,535 (640) (3,650) (43,003) (45,758)
Attributable to changes in tax rates (note 12)  BEREEE(L (fi212) = = = (76) (76)
Exchange realignment NERE - - (85) (556) (641)
Charged to the consolidated income statement 74 A W& X A #

(note 12) (Hit12) (1,535) - - (11,877) (13,412)
At 31 December 2010 BW=Z2-BF+-A=t-AH - (640) (3,735) (55,512) (59,887)
For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain HREEEBBRZEINNMS E*Lkﬁﬂﬁﬁ
deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have been offset in E/(BE)EREEBSERFE125F
accordance with the conditions set out in HKAS 12. The HIRGEE 2500 ﬁ?éﬁ?ﬁ R 2R
following is the analysis of deferred tax balances shown in JERTBAERONAT
the consolidated balance sheet:

2010 2009

—E—2fF ZEThEF

HK$000 HK$000

FET FET

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBE FE (59,933) (47,338)
Deferred tax assets FIEFIEE BE 46 1,580
(59,887) (45,758)
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MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

(i) The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the

current tax legislation.

(i)  Tax losses of approximately HK$65,844,000 (2009:
HK$48,022,000) arising from the Group's lottery business in
the PRC would expire in the fifth year commencing from the

year the loss incurred whereas tax losses of approximately
HK$139,379,000 (2009: HK$100,778,000) arising from the
Group's other business segments in Hong Kong do not expire

under the current tax legislation.

The Company

The Company has no temporary differences as at 31 December

2010 (2009: Nil).

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 25. BEEBIIE ()
The Group (continued) TEE (&)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognised in (b) EERIEBEE, (BFE)WRKIATIEEE
respect of the following items: THER
2010 2009
—E—EF —ZENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Taxable temporary differences JERRT Iy &= £
— accelerated tax depreciation —IRF BT & (8,975) (88)
Deductible temporary differences AR ERER
— decelerated tax depreciation — R RTIETE 3,163 3,128
- others —HAty 56,515 57,467
Tax losses Mg EE 205,223 148,800
255,926 209,307
Notes: M aE -

() WBERTHE JHREREZEELTS2H-

(i) AEERFEEBREBMELEZBRBEERL
65,844,000 7T (== Z /1.4 : 48,022,000/ 7T )
BEEAEEFERTEAFER  MBRERITHR
ARERBBZEMEBIBAEEZTBE
$849139,379,000/8 7T (=ZZFZ N4 : 100,778,000
L) WA S EIH

KA T
ARAFAR-_E—ZTE+_A=+— AL ELH
ZB2(ZTTAE E) -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

26. INVENTORIES 26. #E&
(@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet comprise: (@) FAGREEERABRRZIEREERE:
The Group
AEME

2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ETRF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials JR#1 % 111,859 61,521
Work-in-progress ER 3,226 2,851
Finished goods BURK A 23,708 35,557
138,793 99,929
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) BRERAIZWINARNERBET 2FEH

expense and included in the Group’s profit or loss is as BT WT

follows:
The Group
rEE

2010 2009
—E-FF ZTTNF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold (note 9) SHEGFE ZKA (K1:F9) 189,746 239,428
Cost of services provided Fir 4 it AR 7% 2 A 2% 481,404 396,080
Cost of sales/services rendered SHE /PR AR TS 2 A 671,150 635,508
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MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. BRE B RN
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-—EHF —ETNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Margin client receivables, net FE WS FF R & P BR FUF R 4,497 2,507
Other client receivables, net JE W5 EAth 2 B BR RO B 1,199 841
Broker receivables JE W 48 48 BR 3K 131 6,316
Amount due from clearing house JE U8 # B P AR K 2,064 =
Loan receivable JE W & 5k 1,478 1,478
Loan interest receivable FEUE KT B 391 391
Trade receivables — Lottery business EWESGER—FEER 858,238 667,496
867,998 679,029

Margin client receivables are repayable on demand, bear
interest at prevailing market rates and are secured by clients’
securities listed on the Stock Exchange with market value of
approximately HK$21,882,000 as at 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$18,720,000). No ageing analysis is disclosed for margin
client receivables as, in the opinion of the Directors, the ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of
business of securities margin financing and broking.

The settlement terms of other client receivables, broker
receivables and amount due from clearing house are one to two
days after the trade date or are repayable on demand. The age
of these balances is within 30 days.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade

receivables approximate to their fair values. The Group generally
grants credit periods of 90 to 160 days to its trade receivables.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

EWFREFPERFNEKRRER  UIRITHHF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The ageing analysis of loan receivable, loan interest receivable
and trade receivables — Lottery business is as follows:

27. BRES KRN (&)

EWER BEEFRAERERESER ¥R
EBHRE DT

As at 31 December 2010
R=-E-ZEF+=-HA=+—H

Loan receivable Trade

and receivables

loan interest - Lottery
receivable business Total

ERERK ERE S

e W & X B —
FE KEXK &=t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Three months or less =EAKAT - 548,537 548,537
One year or less but over three months —FHUATE=EANE - 299,893 299,893
Over one year —FE 1,869 9,808 11,677
1,869 858,238 860,107

As at 31 December 2009
RZZTZNFE+=-A=+—H

Loan receivable Trade

and receivables

loan interest — Lottery
receivable business Total

ERE R R EWE 5

e E = BR—
GBS WEEK &t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T TET TET
Three months or less =EAAT - 482,202 482,202
One year or less but over three months —FFUATE=ZEAN L - 180,271 180,271
Over one year —FE 1,869 5,023 6,892

1,869 667,496 669,365
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 27. EHESRR (&)
As of 31 December 2010, trade receivables of approximately HE-_ZT-ZTHF+=-H=+—H" 470,275,000

110

HK$70,275,000 (2009: HK$69,795,000) were impaired. The
amount of the allowance for impairment was HK$70,267,000 of
31 December 2010 (2009: HK$69,779,000). It is assessed that
a portion of these receivables is expected to be recovered. The

BT (ZZEZTNF :69,795,0008 L) 2 EWE
SEFRCHRE-R-_E—ZTF+_A=+—
B REREKIEAT0,267,0008 T (TN
169,779,000 T0) - & T f 18 - THHII 1D &

ageing of these impaired receivables is as follows:

Wk IR 1 T U [E] - 5% 35 B RUE FE R IE B R e

MR :
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Over one year past due B EAHEE — 70,275 69,795

As of 31 December 2010, trade receivables of approximately

HE-_T-TF+T-A=1+—H " 427,483,000

HK$27,483,000 (2009: HK$37,897,000) were past due but not
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of
these receivables is as follows:

BT (ZZEZNHF :37,897,0008 L) 2 EIRE
ZEFEBRELRRE - ZFEHRATENZ @
I IR RSB R - 25 R EFIEN

FREC DT :

2010 2009

—E—EF —ZENF

HK$000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Three months or less past due BE = A AT 10,238 27,935
One year or less but over three BH—F AT EBRB=[HA

months past due 14,701 9,673

Over one year past due B — 2,544 289

27,483 37,897

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the other trade receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

28.

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

27. BRES KRN (&)

2010 2009

—E-=F —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET

At 1 January m—A—8 69,779 79,085
Exchange realignment 4N BE 3 B 33 -
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE 455 =
Uncollectible amount written off ST Yz 1B 5% T8 i 8 - (9,300)
Impairment losses written back VEREYSE LR E] - (6)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 70,267 69,779

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is
the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above.

UTILITY AND OTHER DEPOSITS
Utility and other deposits represent the deposits paid for the
rollout of lottery business operation including rental, machines

and equipment, projects and related utility deposits.

In the opinion of the Directors, all utility and other deposits are
neither past due nor impaired.

28.

REHERBEINR 2B —RNBHAA AT K E R
SR < B 3

REER sREERRS L& EIKKIRER]
ZRASRME
DREXRAMES

NAEXEREMERSIERARYREB T X
ZRe BREEE #EkiE RERHEEAR
REXRE -

EERR MBELREXERAEMRESHREY
IR R (8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

The above balances as at 31 December 2010 represent
prepayments made to suppliers, lottery project related
prepayments, staff advances, sales of other assets and other

receivables.

As of 31 December 2010, other receivables of approximately
HK$10,969,000 (2009: HK$11,044,000) were impaired. The
amount of the allowance for impairment was approximately
HK$10,869,000 as of 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$11,038,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
related to those were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the prepayments and other
receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

29. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. FEHRIER H bW IR
The Group The Company
AEE AAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF —E2-ZF —TThF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Prepayments and other receivables T8 BRI B A A 8 U R IE 430,876 1,459

385,459 2

PR T —FFF A=+ —HZAERIER
HEBX N Z2EHRE ¥EHB BBERMK
HBTE - HEEMEERE M EKRE-

MN-ZT—ZT&E+—-F=1+—8 HEKkZKES
#910,969,000/8 7T (ZZEZ /L4 : 11,044,000/
TLEHRE - R=_T—ZF+=-_A=+—8"
BB B S TR A 410,869,000 T (2T A,
111,038,000 7T ) ° & Bl 3R E 2 FE WK
BXEHBAVREGR mMERETEBEHER
] Uz 2] 55 13 e Uk FRIE o

BEERA - PTA BRGR R E M B KR FRE R
Hi - IR EORLE -

RBRZBEBRBEZLEOT

The Group
rEH

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January m—A—8 11,038 10,970
Exchange realignment 4N BE 3 B 256 -
Impairment loss written back VERIEY L el (425) -
Impairment losses recognised BERERBEEE - 68
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 10,869 11,038
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 30 BERERBEAREREZERMEE
OR LOSS
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E—-2F —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Listed securities held for trading: HEFEEZ FTES:
Market value of equity securities listed BB LTMRAZESR 2TE
in Hong Kong 8,514 23,064

31.

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid

prices in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented

within the section of operating activities as part of changes in

working capital in the statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss are recorded in other (losses)/gains, net in the

consolidated income statement (note 5).

FERAZESNAREBEDIRES B B RIRERE
miGHBAEE-

RARAAEI B2 SREAERELED
~H25 AFARSRERFEIASRD 2
%

(e
B
B

BBBGRARBHEZEREEZAAEE
PRGARERTREREM (BE) KaF
# (KfaEs5) -

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 31. B RIBITHER
The Group The Company
EEE AAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Z5F —ETNF —E2-ZF —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FHET
Pledged bank deposits B EIRRITIF K 45,302 16,875 - =
Short term bank deposit RHRITER - 77,800 - -
Cash at banks RITRE

— general accounts ——REFR 232,400 229,936 644 16,142
- segregated accounts —BYERF 14,687 27,029 - -
Cash in hand FHERS 1,825 1,518 - =
294,214 644 16,142

353,158
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

31. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)
The bank deposits of HK$45,302,000 (2009: HK$16,875,000)
have been pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group other than those in segregated accounts.

Cash and bank balances include the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency, HK dollars:

31.

ReRBITER(8)

45,302,0008 7t (ZZTZT /14 : 16,875,000/
L) ZRITFEREERTRIT ERAEEER
—REBITEE (RBLERPERIN) ZHER-

ERE RBITEBHT  BETIARRRIES
¥ (BB TT) IASNE DI B HO FHE

The Group
AEME

2010 2009

—E-2F —TTNF

‘000 ‘000

FT Fr

Euro BT 5 7
Malaysian Ringgits 5 161 139
US dollars ETT 19 57
Renminbi AR 224,651 180,208
Japanese Yen = 62 62
Singapore dollars TN T 4 4

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the

purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows:

REABARERME BLeRBLZENESE
R IES R

The Group
rEE

2010 2009

—ZT-FF —ETNF

HK$000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Cash in hand FHBAS 1,825 1,518

Short term bank deposit FRHERITFER - 77,800
Cash at banks RITH S

— general accounts ——RERP 232,400 229,936

Bank overdrafts (note 37) RITEX (K15#37) - (67)

234,225 309,187
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

During the year, 160,000,000 (2009: 211,500,000) share
options were exercised by the eligible option holders at their
respective subscription prices for a total cash consideration of
HK$132,050,000 (2009: HK$73,950,000). Out of 211,500,000
share options exercised in 2009, 17,500,000 share options
were exercised on 29 December 2009 but shares were allotted
and issued on 4 January 2010. As a result, an aggregate of
177,500,000 (2009: 194,000,000) new ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each were issued, details of which are set
out in note 33(a).

All new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu in

all respects with the existing shares.

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. BRA
Number
of shares Amount
R EE k|
‘000 HK$000
TR FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EREE0BTZEER
Authorised: EIE
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 RZ=ZTZ=NF—HF—H"
and 31 December 2010 —ETAF+A=+—HBK
—E-ZTFE+_F=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHR:
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNFE—HA—H 7,396,175 73,962
Exercise of share options 7710 B R e 194,000 1,940
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+=_A=+—H 7,590,175 75,902
Exercise of share options TR AR 177,500 1,775
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-ZF+=-H=+—H 7,767,675 77,677

£ X 160,000,000 (ZZZ A4 :211,500,000
DIERERSCEREREFREAREERER
7141 & K {EA132,050,0008 T (ZEEZT h
4 :73,950,0008 L) R NFETHEN
211,500,00017 f& Bk # # - 517,500,00017 & AR # T5
RZTEENF+ A+ WBAOFERE_S—TF—
AMAFERERETRG Bt ARRIETEH
177,500,0000% ( =Z T A, 4F : 194,000,000/% ) & f&
HE0.01B T2 TR B BEHR N FE33(a)

o

FEFRETZHEBRES T AHBERERNER

%5 4 36
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group's share option scheme was adopted by the Group on
22 November 2002 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling
the Group to grant share options to executives and employees
of the Group and other persons who have made contributions to
the Group as incentives and/or rewards for their contributions to
the Group or its subsidiaries.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant share options to
the eligible participants as defined in the Scheme to subscribe
for such number of shares as the Board may determine. Share
options granted should be accepted within 30 days from the
date of offer. Upon acceptance of the share options, the grantee
shall pay HK$1.00 to the Group by way of consideration for the
grant.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the
Board, save that such price will not be less than the highest
of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant, and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Group on the
date of approval and adoption of the Scheme provided that
the Group may at any time seek approval from its shareholders
to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting where
such limit is refreshed. Share options previously granted under
any share option scheme(s) of the Group (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised share options) will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
to each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of grant. Share options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent Non-executive Directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Group's issued share capital on the
date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Group’s shareholders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The period during which share options may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share options can be exercised more than 10 years after they
have been granted. There is no general requirement that share
options must be held for any minimum period before they can
be exercised. The Scheme will expire on 22 November 2012.

The following table discloses movements in the Scheme:

During the year ended 31 December 2010:

33.

BRRESTE (8)
EESREERNBRATEBREZITER  EE
BRI % B BAE ST 10F & N Al 1T{F « HRITfE
BB AR A4 7B 15 G BB AR 2 A R HA TR I A& E A
—BHRE -Zt BN _E—=—F+—A=+=
H & °

TRIEEZTE 28 :

BE-F—FF+-A=t+—ALFE:

Number of share options (000)

BREHE (T6)
Transferred  Transferred
from other to other
Date of Exercise Outstanding category category Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
offer to grant price per Exercisable at  duringthe  during the during during during at
Grantees options share period  01.01.2010 year year the year the year the year  31.12.2010
(note ) (note ) (note i)
RZE-BF
R-2-%% 1A
BRE -B-B FREBE EFAERL ==
ERA RAAH BREE T4 WATHE  ARER  EHEE  FARE  FATR ERAN HARE
(i) (Hizti) (Hietii)
HKS
BT
Employees 20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007 - 08.07.2010 16,000 - - - (5,000) (11,000) -
E&

25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007 - 07.08.2010 10,000 - - - - (10,000) -
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008 - 30.10.2011 5,000 - - - (5,000) - -
08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009 - 07.12.2012 182,500 30,000 - - (55,500) - 157,000
30.09.2010 0.740 04.10.2010 - 29.09.2012 - - - 70,000 (52,500) - 17,500
Other eligible participants 20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007 - 08.07.2010 20,000 - - - - (20,000) -

EAERZEAL
25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007 - 07.08.2010 5,000 - - - - (5,000) -
08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009 - 07.12.2012 94,000 - (30,000) - (42,000) - 22,000
332,500 30,000 (30,000) 70,000 (160,000) (46,000) 196,500
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33. BRERTE ()
The following table discloses movements in the Scheme: TREEZTE 28 :
During the year ended 31 December 2009: HE_TZENF+TA=+—HIEFE:
Number of share options ('000)
BREHE (T6)
Transferred ~ Transferred
from other to other
Date of Exercise Outstanding category category Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
offer to grant price per Exercisable at  duringthe  during the during during during at
Grantees options share period  01.01.2009 year year the year the year the year ~ 31.12.2009
(note j) (note ) (note iif)
RZEENF
RZ=BBNE t=A
BRE -B-B FREBE EFAERE Sqr=r
ERA RYEH BRITEE (il ] HARTR Rt R At 85 ERfTR ERXR HATE
(Hiti) (Hiti)
HKS
AT
Employees 06.07.2006 0.295 13.07.2006 - 12.07.2009 36,000 - - - - (36,000 -
20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007 - 08.07.2010 36,000 - (20,000) - - - 16,000
25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007 - 07.08.2010 10,000 - - - - - 10,000
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008 - 30.10.2011 159,000 - (10,000) - (144,000) - 5,000
08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009 - 07.12.2012 - - - 192,000 (9,500) = 182,500
Other eligible participants 20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007 - 08.07.2010 - 20,000 = = = = 20,000
EaER2EAL
25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007 - 07.08.2010 5,000 - - - - - 5,000
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008 - 30.10.2011 40,000 10,000 - - (50,000) - -
08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009 - 07.12.2012 - - - 102,000 (8,000) = 94,000
286,000 30,000 (30,000) 294,000 (211,500) (36,000) 332,500
Notes: e
(i) Such share options were re-classified between the category of () HBREBEZ2EATHBLEE ZSEREERFA

“Employees” and “Other eligible participants” during the year as a
result of the change of the title of the relevant participant.

(i) The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant
on 4 October 2010 was HK$0.740.

(iii)  The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant
on 16 December 2009 was HK$0.790.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a)

(b)

Details of share options exercised during the year:

33. BERESE(8)
(a) FRITEBRENEE:

—RFE+_H=+t—BLFE

2010 2009
ZE-%F —ETNE
Market value
Exercise per share at Proceeds Number of Proceeds Number of
Exercise date fifER price  exercise date received  share options received share options
fifER
i@ SRTHE FERE BREHA g BRELR
HKS HKS HK$'000 ‘000 HK3$ 000 ‘000
BT BT FET Fh FAT 7
7 April 2009 to 2 December 2009 :T?hi@ﬂ tAZE 0300 0.335100.720
3 0.335%0.720 - - 58,200 194,000
29 December 2009 0.900 0.910 - - 15,750 17,500*
26 January 2010 to 2 February 2010 0.300 0.850 to 1.010
0.850%1.010 1,500 5,000 = =
18 January 2010 to 30 April 2010 0.900  0.900 to 1.230
3 0.900%1.230 87,750 97,500 - =
14 April 2010 —T- Ti@ﬂﬂ‘@ﬂ 0.790 1.130 3,950 5,000 - -
6 October 2010 to 10 December 2010  —E—ZF+ARHEZE 0.740  0.740 to 0.800
-2+ -A+A 0.740%0.800 38,850 52,500 = =
132,050 160,000 73,950 211,500
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise FERNTEBERENRTER Z MEFEG T
for share options exercised during the year was HK$0.939 FEAGR0BIEBT(—_EEZNE K
(2009: HK$0.55) per share. 0.55/%87T) °
The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) BREZHERMNEFLETEERE
share options
Movements in the number of share options outstanding MARTTEBARES B &8 & H B g F
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as BHITEBHT :
follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNEF
Average Average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of

per share share options per share share options

BRIYTEE BREBE SRTHITEE FERR SR

HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000

T F T Fn

Outstanding at 1 January — A—BMEERITE 0.890 332,500 0.405 286,000
Granted BEREH 0.740 70,000 0.900 294,000
Exercised* Ekei:a 0.939 (160,000) 0.350 (211,500)
Lapsed B R 0.655 (46,000) 0.295 (36,000)
Outstanding at 31 December RTZA=+—HBHRTE 0.886 196,500 0.890 332,500
Exercisable at 31 December R+—A=+—HafIE 0.886 196,500 0.890 332,500
B Out of 211,500,000 share options exercised in 2009, * R=ZTZNF1T{#,2211,500,00017 ¥ A% #

17,500,000 share options were exercised on 29 December

2009 but shares were allotted and issued on 4 January 2010.

/o H 17,500,000/ B ER = F

TZRA-thBfFE BRONR=F—

—AmBA FIABRCE KRBT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(o)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options (continued)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had
exercise price of ranging from HK$0.740 to HK$0.900
(2009: ranging from HK$0.300 to HK$1.130) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.92 years
(2009: 2.57 years). No option was cancelled during the
year.

The exercise in full of the outstanding 196,500,000 (2009:
332,500,000) share options at 31 December 2010 would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 196,500,000 (2009: 332,500,000)
additional shares for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$174,050,000 (2009:
HK$295,740,000).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

During the year, 70,000,000 (2009: 294,000,000)
options were granted and are fully vested immediately.
The estimated fair values of the options granted during
the year are approximately HK$4,965,160 (2009:
HK$7,951,000).

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

33. BERESE(8)

(b)

(o)

BREZHERMETITEER(F)

R-ZZE—ZTFE+_A=+—BHR1TEZ
BE AR 2 1T fF BN T°0.740/8 7L £0.900/5
T(ZZFEZNF: 7 F0.3008 L E1.130
BIT)  MAMEFHEBRTELHFHAA1.92
E(ZBENE:2.57F) c FRI ET 8
{F f] B AR 2 o

BEBEARAABERZEARARE  BHT
FR-_ZFE—"ZFTF+_A=+—HH
RITE2196,500,0000 (= FF 1
£ :332,500,0001 ) B8 A% # 15 &
%% 17196,500,0008% (=T ZT A 4 :
332,500,0000% ) BEINIR 1 - 4B 3R & RER
MR A4 5174,050,0008 7T (=2
FL4F £ 295,740,000/ 70 ) ©

BREARBERER

F£7/ 70,000,000 (=TT h &F:
294,000,00017 ) 5 % # 7 4% i 3 B B 7B 25
EEB-FARLZEREZAAEMBEA
4,965,160/ 7L (= ZT Z AL, : 7,951,000
PETT) e



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33. BRAESTE (&)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (0 BEREAAERRBR(E)

(continued)

The fair value is calculated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The weighted average inputs into the model
were as follows:

RABETDERM N —FRXMEEER
B

Share options granted

= R e
Date of Date of Date of
offer to grant offer to grant offer to grant
options options options
30.09.2010 08.12.2009 08.12.2009
i B R 5 R fE A 1
A ¥ i A A £ A A
R=ZB—2F RZZETIhEFE RZIZZEILF
AA=+H +=—A/\H +Z—A\H
Share price iz (B HK$0.71038 7t HK$0.760/87C  HK$0.7605% 7T
Exercise price 1fE(E HK$0.7403 T HK$0.900/8 C  HK$0.900/8 7T
Expected volatility T8 2R R 1R 53.22% 40.16% 43.56%
Expected option life (in years) TRERRE AR REEAPR (3R 5T) 0.25-0.5 0.5 0.25
Risk-free-rate f R B 1) 0.24-0.28% 0.08% 0.04%
Expected dividends TEHERAR B 1% 1% 1%

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company's share price over the
previous 52 weeks. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on the managements’ estimate, for
the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$4,965,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: HK$7,951,000) in relation to share options granted
by the Company, of which approximately HK$4,965,000
(2009: HK$5,193,000) are recorded in staff costs (note 7).

FEHREDERARRKRER BES2EZ
MIREEE - % RELPT A 2 TRERF R Th AR 4%
ERE MR EEN TERE R
TREEZZEMAE-

REBEZ-_ZE—ZFF+_A=+—H1
FE - ASHEHERARARATEHZEBER
BHERA L£H4,965,0008 L (Z2ZF
NL& 7,951,000 T) BT HPH
4,965,000 7t (ZZZ )14 : 5,193,000
BL)EREREEKAN (MFE7) -
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B mERWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

122

34. RESERVES 34. f#E
(a) The Group (a) #&£HE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements REBAFERBAFEZFEEREIZS
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the SHERUBERERFNAZEEEREHE
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 42 of FE5 -
the financial statements.
(b) The Company (b) AAF
Retained
Capital ~ Share-based profits/ Proposed
Share  redemption payment  Contributed (accumulated final
premium reverse reserve surplus losses) dividend Total
MRt RERR,/ B
RGEE BXEEGEE JEZRE #ABSR  (ZHER) KARE fit
HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNE-F—-B 2,365,597 158 13,643 199,605 (165,553) - 2,413,450
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 213,120 - 213,120
Issue of new shares BORRA 56,260 - - - - - 56,260
Recognition of share option benefits R ZA A Et B4
at fair value BRERRN - - 7,951 - - - 7,951
Share option lapsed BRELN - - (1,679) - 1,679 = =
Transfer of exercise of share options ~ R{7EF BB R M & 2,157 - (2,157) - - - -
Interim dividend (note 13) hHRE (Hit13) - - - - (13,633) - (13,633)
Proposed final dividend BERARE - - - - (33,083) 33,083 -
At 31 December 2009 and RZZEAFT-A=t-AR
1 January 2010 i 25-8-8 2,424,014 158 17,758 199,605 2,530 33,083 2,677,148
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 191,729 - 191,729
Issue of new shares BOHRA 146,025 - - - - - 146,025
Recognition of share option BREALEHTER
benefits at fair value BRERAN - - 4,965 - - - 4,965
Share options lapsed BRELN = = (8,606) = 8,606 = =
Transfer on exercise of share options 17 &8 Bk i 8 & 8,035 - (8,035) - = - -
2009 proposed final dividend paid Bkl 2 —EENEREREKE
(note 13) (Hiit13) - - - - (92) (33,083) (33,175)
Interim dividend (note 13) hHRE (Hit13) - - - - (27,031) - (27,031)
2010 proposed final dividend “E-ZERERHRE - - - - (43,608) 43,608 -
At 31 December 2010 W=Z-%4+-A=1+-A 2,578,074 158 6,082 199,605 132,134 43,608 2,959,661
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

34. RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves

()

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction
of the nominal value of the issued capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based payments
in note 2(q)(iii).

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the
Group and the nominal amount of the shares issued
for the acquisition, less dividend, capital restructuring
and further investments in existing subsidiaries.

Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy notes 2(u).

Contribution surplus

The contribution surplus of the Company as at 31
December 2010 represents the difference between
the consolidated net assets of REXCAPITAL Financial
Group Limited at the date when its shares were
acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition,
less dividends and capital restructuring.

34. & (&)
() REMHEREN

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

K15 EE
BBEERZERE - NN\-—FBR
ERADEFLOGEARE -

BEXEE#E
EABOFEREHBREOSAR
AEHTEAEERIMES -

HRGZ B2 1#

VA B0 32 5RIR 2 6 485 1R AR 1B Y E
2(q)(ii) B AR AD S FRIAM R A 2 &
ARERERAARRES BB A MG
HARARTERBRERBE ZAAE:

5 1A

Rl EENBRARKRASELEE
B 2 B0 TH B 22 Bt UR B8 1 B 1T AR 1D 2
EERZZEZR SHEKRE BXE
AENREMBARIZBRESHE

ELZ#E

BE 3 B R R B R N S 75 2 B 75
WRAEEZABELZR ZHE
RIEME2W 28 BREE -

A &

ARRABE_ZT -—ZF+ A
=+ —HZHARRIEREXCAPITAL
Financial Group Limitedf% % # A& A
AEER HEGaEEFEEAR
ARKEMETRHM 2 EERZ =
H-BHRKRERERSEA-

Annual Report 2010 =ZB—EFF

123



124

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

34. RESERVES (continued) 34. f#fE(B)

(d) Distribution of reserves
Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of the
contributed surplus, if:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii)  the realisable value of the Company's assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and the share premium

account.

(d)

f 2 7 it R
RE-NAN—FBRERFE (5“7 E&T)
RRBZBABRIRAIHED IR © AT - fif 35

ERTER BIAR ﬂT\ﬂE)JfESZ;W#%
B REMARBPEL DK :

(i) ARBERZMNRIBAERREXBRER
BEIMEENEAE X

‘m]u}

(i) ARRBEEZAERERELDNE
BEEMEEZETRAMBRMDEERZ
BEtE® -

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company's reserves ERB ARFARBEERAIHS IR TR

available for distribution to shareholders as at the balance %ZE% woT
sheet date were as follows:

2010 2009

—E-—EHF —ETNF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

(restated)

(&E75)

Contributed surplus BB 199,605 199,605

Retained profits IR B 5 A 132,134 2,530

331,739 202,135

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]




35. TRADE PAYABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

35. BNESKRR

2010 2009

—E—EHF —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Margin client payables ERFREP RN 4,641 4,863
Other client payables FE 1~ EAth = P BR AR 13,189 28,515
Amount due to clearing house JE 1~ 45 B P AR K - 71
Trade payables-Lottery business ENEB SRR - FRED 53,850 60,809
Bills payables-Lottery business ENBE-FEES 5,814 16,875
77,494 111,133

Margin client payables and other client payables are repayable
on demand and bear interest at prevailing market rates.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for margin client payables,
other client payables and amount due to clearing house as, in
the opinion of the Directors, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of securities
margin financing and broking.

Trade payables are expected to be settled within one year or are
repayable on demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade

BNFREFRARENEMTFERRDKRE
SRER - WIABRITH SRR & o

HREZRAR/ABSARBEXTBRELES
MEmME ﬁ%fﬂﬁ 3 K [ 3 A BE
HHEE)EEE ENEMEPRARENEE
PR BR 2 BR B 3 AT B F

N E S RFIAAN —F AN RIRERKER -

payables approximate to their fair values.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables — Lottery

EXERARNESERZEEEREERAER
.

AEERNESRFI - K EXHZRIED TN

business is as follows: T~
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Three months or less =EAAKAT 32,016 52,023
Over three months =@A N E 21,834 8,786
53,850 60,809
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

36.

37.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals of the Group and the Company are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year
or are repayable on demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other
payables and accruals of the Group and the Company

approximate to their fair values.

36.

H fth FE A3 FRIE R B R RUR
REERARA 2 H AR KB RAR
HR - FAREELERRBRARRERER-

B 2 H il e 5 5R0R K '

HARERE-

IR 2 R E{E B

BORROWINGS 37. BE
The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E—EF —ZTNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank overdrafts RITEX
— unsecured — R - 67
Bank loans |ITER
— secured —H 96,106 56,818
— unsecured — K 3 15,360 4,772
Other loan E i B &K
Wholly repayable within five years REFRBHEE
— unsecured — B - 18,533
All due within one year 2HN—FANEIH 111,466 80,190

The bank loans and overdrafts are repayable within one year or
when the facility is withdrawn. These borrowings are used to
finance the lottery business of the Group.

Bank loans of approximately HK$96,106,000 (2009:
HK$56,818,000) were secured by the leasehold buildings and
land use right (note 17) and bank deposits (note 31) of the
Group.

The effective interest rates on the Group's borrowings are equal

to contractual interest rates.

The Directors consider that the fair values of borrowings at the
balance sheet date approximate to their carrying amounts.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

RITERRBEXR —FAREEMOEEE - %
EREREREENEEBZMTES -

#996,106,000/% 7T ( ZZEZ L4 : 56,818,000/8
T ZHRTEFUNAEBE 2 HEEF R MER
#E(MIE17) RIBITF R (MI3E31) 1B

AEBBEREZERANRTFIBENREHF K-

E=ZRA 2EERGERZAREEEREE



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

37. BORROWINGS (continued)

The bank overdrafts carried interest at either HIBOR or Prime
Rate (2009: HIBOR or Prime Rate). The effective interest rates for
bank loans are ranging from 4.86% to 5.89% per annum (2009:
4.86% 10 5.84%).

Bank borrowings include the following amount denominated in
a currency other than the Company’s functional currency, HK

37.

BE (&)
RITEZ N RBEBRTRERKANRLZE
BAR(ZZEZNE  FABITREFRKF X
FREBEMR)FE - BTERZERFE =R
NF4.86%%E5.89% (— BT NF:4.86%%F
5.84% ) o

RITBEEBE THIAKR DR R A & 8 T A5
E¥HIME 2 508

dollars:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNEFE
000 ‘000
FT Fr
Renminbi ARK 95,861 54,200

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities which
are secured by margin client’s securities with market value
of approximately HK$7,322,000 (2009: HK$5,204,600) and
guaranteed by the Company in respect of the financial services:

KREBATEXT,322,0008 T (TN
5,204,600 7)) 2 AR EFEHERPIL A AR
NEMEMEBRBERIAREERNT

2010 2009
—z-%% —EEA
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Floating rate A |
— expiring within one year —E RN E R 30,000 30,000
The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject —FAERZEERAFERER AR

to review during 2011.

——FRATUNUEMH-
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MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

38.

39.

40.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant Social Security
Bureau in respect of the retirement benefits for the PRC
subsidiaries” employees in the PRC.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED

The Group

At 31 December 2010, the Group has not given any significant
financial guarantees (2009: Nil).

The Company

The Company has issued unlimited corporate guarantee to
a bank to secure general facilities granted to one of the
subsidiaries. None (2009: Nil) of the facilities were utilised by
the subsidiary as at 31 December 2010. The Company has not
recognised any deferred income and the related expenses in
respect of such guarantee, as in the opinion of the Directors,
their fair value cannot be reliably measured using observable
market data and their transaction price was nil.

The Directors consider that the subsidiary is financially
resourceful settling the obligation.

COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2010
not provided for in the financial statements were as

38.

39.

40.

RAKBERGE

BIKER KA
AEBRBRGMLIBESHEGH REERS
ERSEBHERESRABME ([RES
AEDZEE R BAERHERZRESE
8 FERZHA T REEEATH S Z B A LA
B WRNMRIR & TR & 5t &) 2 3 TE B B & 1R
R PR o AR B EH 2 B HAEARTE
SHEREBEESHA -

BREBFRTEER  PREMBARARTEES
ZERARENRE AL ERERBS 2 ERBER
ROREHEE R HR -

2B H 2 MBRR

rEE

R-BE-—Z2F+-A=+—H AKEILHEEKX
HBEER(ZZETNF:E) -

RAF
ARAREHRER —RMBRAME -—RERR
—RBTBEHERBZARER - R_T—FF
T RA=+—H ZWBARYEHAFEERE
—ETNFE) - BERR ARSHELYH
ERZ AEARBER R BB IS BUR A SEAT
E MEVEKRRE MARFLERZSER
EREMETERARBBRAX -

E=ZRRZMBRARARGERWES FFEAR
&7
A

(@ R=ZZE—ZTHE+-_A=-+—BYREHH
HRAAZRENERALZNT

follows:
The Group AEH
2010 2009
—E-=F —TTNF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET F&ET
Contracted for BEET4
— purchase of leasehold land use rights —BEERE T ERE (7))
(note) - 22,358
— purchase of property, plant and —BEYE BRERZHE
equipment - 38,804
— fulfillment of paid up capital — T TH B A B MR BR B E R
requirement of a subsidiary 190,120 -
190,120 61,162
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a)

(continued)
Note:

On 24 July 2008, the Group entered into an agreement to
acquire a medium term leasehold land use rights in the PRC for
a consideration of RMB21,775,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,744,000), of which RMB2,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,386,000) was paid to the relevant government
authority and had been recognised as “Deposits for acquisition
of leasehold land use rights” in the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2009, resulting in a capital commitment of
RMB19,675,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$22,358,000).
The relevant land use right certificate was expected to be issued
upon fully settlement of the consideration. At 31 December 2010,
the Directors were of the opinion that there was no such capital
commitment since the deposits for acquisition of leasehold land
use right (note 21) were forfeited on the expiry of this acquisition

agreement.

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z

—RFE+_H=+t—BLFE

40. i (%)

(a)

(#)
Hifat :

RZFTZNFLAZ+HA AEETx— 7%
FUAMBTFETHAE L HERE REAAR
#21,775,0007¢ (49 #85724,744,0007 7T) * &
F AR #2,100,0007T (4948 & 742,386,000/ 7T )
EXNTFTEEBRAEE YER-_TTAF+=
A=E+-B2RAEEABRERARRA [BAH
ErmERAEZTS] Mo BERREARYE
19,675,0007T (4918 % 1422,358,0007% Jt.) 78 £
EERERGEEEMIERAEZE - RZT
*%¢+_H:+f H -BHRBEARE T HER
#(E21) 2 T REBARZEIE A B BRI
MEERRBEZERNEIE-

WoE-—2F+-A=+-0 AEER
BB ERE Y RN RIEES
LEDT

The Group AEE
2010 2009
—E—ZF —ETAF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(restated)
(geE:75)

Land and buildings T RIEF
Within one year —F R 13,694 16,446
In the second to fifth year inclusive TEERF (BRERMF) 6,301 13,250
19,995 29,696

The Group leases various office premises and warehouses
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of one to five years. The leases do not include any
contingent rentals.

The Company

At 31 December 2010, the Company did not have any
significant capital and operating lease commitments (2009:
Nil).

AEBERBEEANERZEARLIERRE M

ZERNNTRP—ERAFAE U ANBIEEM
HARTHE -

AT

RZE—ZFE+-_A=+—H RNRARLEMEM
BREARKEHERAE (ZSTNF &) -

Annual Report 2010 =ZB—EFF

129



130

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

41.

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 41. EEEJ_J rREmMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial NEER 24 TEERZERENT :
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
The Group AEE
Financial assets SREE
2010 2009
—E-%% ZEThE
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through through
profit or profit or
loss - held Loans and |oss - held Loans and
for trading  receivables Total  for trading receivables Total
BRER BBBEE
RAMEHE BANEE
LEREE- EXR JEREE- ‘“J’&
BEEEER el 5R @i REEEE el @
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Hiz FEx FE7 FE7 AT FET FAT
Statutory deposits EERE 24 - 833 833 - 632 632
Trade receivables B E 5 R 27 - 867,998 867,998 - 679,029 679,029
Utility and other deposits AHEEREMES 28 - 287,916 287,916 = 233,278 233,278
Other receivables Hitn ek IE 29 - 243,186 243,186 - 324,242 324,242
Financial assets at fair value ﬁﬂ?ﬁw}ﬁ FTEZ
through profit or loss tREE 30 8,514 - 8,514 23,064 = 23,064
Cash and bank balances BeRFTEH 31 - 294,214 294,214 - 353,158 353,158
8,514 1,694,147 1,702,661 23,064 1,590,339 1,613,403
Financial liabilities
SREE
2010 2009
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
—E-FF —EENF
R bivg: &z
CES R RAHE
ZEmAE ZEBMEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
Borrowings fEE 37 111,466 80,190
Trade payables FERTE S BRK 35 77,494 111,133
Other payables and accruals E b FE 5 50IR R FE T IR 36 54,159 77,095
243,119 268,418

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the
normal course of its business and financial instruments.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focus
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance as follows:

(i) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rate
relating to receivables from foreign brokers
and foreign currency deposits with banks. The
Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from the above
receivables in the current and prior years.

In addition, foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operation. The Group's lottery
business operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

During the year ended 31 December 2010,
if HK$ had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against the RMB, with all other variables
held constant, the effect on the profit for
the year is immaterial, equity would have
been approximately HK$60,273,000 (2009:
HK$60,545,000) lower/higher due to foreign
exchange realignment arising from translating
investments in foreign operations into HKS$.

The above sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that a change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 5%
increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
exchange rate over the period until the next
balance sheet date. The analysis was performed
on the same basis for 2009.

B %% R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z

—RFE+_H=1t—BLFE

5t %5 R B B R

(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued)
(2) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group monitors its interest rate exposure
regularly to ensure that the underlying risk is
monitored within an acceptable range. Most of
the Group's interest bearing assets and liabilities
are on a floating rate basis with maturity of one
year or less.

The Group's interest rate positions arise from
treasury and operating activities. Interest rate
risk arises in treasury management, customer
financing and investment portfolios. Interest
rate risk primarily results from the timing
differences in the repricing of interest-bearing
assets, liabilities and commitments. It also
relates to the bank borrowings carried interest
at variable rates which are collateralised by
margin client’s securities, bank deposits and
leasehold buildings and land use rights to
mitigate the cash flow interest risk.

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1% in interest
rates of the PRC and of Hong Kong (2009:
1%), with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease profit for the
year and increase/decrease retained profits
by approximately HK$1,209,000 (2009:
HK$2,288,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for both derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 1% increase or decrease in the
PRC and Hong Kong interest rate represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

()

(ii)

Market risk (continued)

(3)  Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through investments in equity securities and
the Company’s interests in subsidiaries. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.
The Board manages the exposure by closely
monitoring the portfolio of equity investments.
To manage its price risk arising from investments
in equity securities, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done
in accordance with the limits set by the Group.
The Group did not have significant exposure to
price risk during the current and prior years.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the clients’ and brokers’ failure to perform
their obligations as at 31 December 2010 in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible to compile the credit
and risk management policies, to approve credit limits
and determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount for each individual account
receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate allowances for impairment are made for

irrecoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(ii)  Credit risk (continued)
The credit risk on liquid funds is also limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. In
this regard, the Directors of the Group consider that
the Group's credit risk is effectively controlled and
significantly reduced.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as approximately 26%
(2009: 30%) of the total trade and other receivables
were due from the five largest clients.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposures to credit risk arising from
trade receivables, utility and other deposits, and
prepayments and other receivables are set out in
notes 27, 28 and 29.

(iii) Liquidity risk
As part of ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with Clearing House or brokers
and clients. To address the risk, management is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
regulatory requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term.
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRERHMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BBEBREE (&)
Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BIHEREZE(E)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (iii) FEEZEE (F)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRINRTAEBARLHERZTE L
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's HEHNcRaBE (BERES DR XS
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual (B F B ) BEAE AN ERN =
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments ENAB)RGEEHNHR T AL
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, BR AR AREFEBEESBEREYN
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and =R
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
2010 2009
—2-%% ZTThE
Total Within Total Within
contractual 1 year contractual 1 year
Carrying  undiscounted oron Carrying  undiscounted or on
amount cash flows demand amount cash flows demand
24 Bi#)
MRERM -ERg fREE R ) —ERY
REE BRensLE REREE REE Ren2£E REKER
HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEx TET TET TET TET TET
Trade payables LS 77,494 77,494 77,494 111,133 111,133 111,133
Other payables and accruals —~ E- A fE 708 [ fEat 3R 54,159 54,159 54,159 77,095 77,095 77,095
Borrowings &8 111,466 116,859 116,859 80,190 81,268 81,268
243,119 248,512 248,512 268,418 269,496 269,496
Fair values (b) 2AR{E
Financial instruments carried at fair value BAALEIEZ2HT A

The following table presents the carrying value of the
financial instruments measured at fair value at the balance
sheet date across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instruments
categorised in its entirely based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The
levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BBEBREE (&)
(b) Fair values (continued) (b) DRME(E)
Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) BAREIEzEMT A (&)
Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active F_H-NAEERTSEFREUEMITA
market for similar financial instruments, or using valuation ZHRE IMBEEIHABEERAERT
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or SHBESE 2 EEH AE 2 HERMN &
indirectly based on observable data. ERMNIE
Level 3 (lowest level): fair value measured using valuation F=H(HESEH) : MAERIEIFERT
techniques in which any significant input is not based on BEMBHBESHZEEHAB L HER
observable market data. (=
The Group AEH
Level 1
E—&%
HK$000
FETT
2010 —E-FF
Financial assets at fair value ARABREBRANBHAEZSREE:
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investment — EmRARIEE 8,514
2009 —ETNF
Financial assets at fair value BRBREANBENECEREE:
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investment — FmRAEE 23,064
(c) Estimation of fair values () 2DREME
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active Efﬁﬁ@ﬁ RS2 IA (IR 5 KA

markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price (i.e. level 1 — highest
level).

The carrying values less allowances for impairment
of current receivables and of current payables are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. Estimated
discounted cash flows at the current market interest
rate are used to determine fair value for these financial

instruments (i.e. level 3 — lowest level).
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43.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light

of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this
purpose the Group defines debts as total debts (which includes
borrowings, trade and other payables plus unaccrued proposed
dividends). Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity,
other than amounts recognised in equity relating to cash flow
hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2010, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2009, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a
reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 43.

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2010 and
2009 were as follows:

EARBEE (H)
R-F-FTER-TFAFT-A=+—-A2
BEREHEEALEDT

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
(restated)
(g&E51)

Current liabilities: BB E
Trade payables FESE 5 R 77,494 111,133
Other payables and accruals E b & 5 RIE K FE T RRIR 54,159 77,095
Borrowings BE 111,466 80,190
Total debts BELR 243,119 268,418
Proposed final dividend EEARHRE 43,608 33,083
Adjusted debts KRAEAR 286,727 301,501
Adjusted capital BRBEER 3,730,500 3,413,588
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio EEEKHBRER L RFE 8% 9%

Certain subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements in accordance with the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") and their respective liquid capital
as at 31 December 2010 is in compliance with the stipulated
liquidity requirement imposed by the SFO.

The Company is not subject to either internally or externally
imposed capital requirements.
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45.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z

ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In June 2010, the Group acquired additional 5.09% equity
interest of Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co. Ltd (“Sinodata”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, from its non-
controlling equity holders at a consideration of HK$258,800,000
by way of cash. As a result of the additional acquisition,
Sinodata has become an 89.84% owned subsidiary of the
Group.

In October 2009, the Group acquired additional 16% equity
interest of Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd (“Kingsail”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, from its non-
controlling equity holders at a consideration of HK$91,000,000
by way of cash. As a result of the additional acquisition, Kingsail
has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES

Acquisitions during 2010

(@) In April 2010, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a memorandum of understanding to
acquire the entire equity interest in a company, Winrest
International Limited (“Winrest”), from an independent
third party for a cash consideration of HK$75,585,000.
Completion of the acquisition was in two stages with
cash considerations of HK$2,000,000 and HK$73,585,000
in July and December 2010 respectively. The Group
has obtained controlling interest in Winrest in the first
stage acquisition. Winrest has a wholly owned subsidiary
established in the PRC which is engaged in mobile lottery
business. Upon completion of the acquisition, Winrest
has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. This
acquisition has been accounted for by the acquisition
method of accounting.

At the date of the first stage acquisition, the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquired group of subsidiaries was considered as nil
balance, therefore, goodwill of HK$2,000,000 was arisen
as a result of this acquisition. The further consideration
paid of HK$73,585,000 for the remaining equity interest is
then charged to retained profits.

44.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

45. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries during 2010 (continued)

(b) In July 2010, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement to acquire the entire equity
interest in Dynasty Max Limited (“Dynasty”), from an
independent third party for a cash consideration of
HK$100,000,000. Dynasty has 80% entity interest in a
subsidiary established in the PRC which is engaged in
development of new mobile value-added service for lottery
business in the PRC. Completion of the acquisition was in
two stages with cash considerations of HK$6,000,000 and
HK$94,000,000 in July and December 2010 respectively.
The Group has obtained controlling interest in Dynasty
in the first stage acquisition. Upon completion of the
acquisition, Dynasty has become a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group. This acquisition has been accounted for by
the acquisition method of accounting.

At the date of the first stage acquisition, the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquired group of subsidiaries was considered as nil
balance, therefore, goodwill of HK$6,000,000 was arisen
as a result of this acquisition. The further consideration
paid of HK$94,000,000 for remaining equity interest is
then charged to retained profits.

At the balance sheet date, the above acquired groups of
subsidiaries have not yet commenced their lottery business
and therefore they did not contribute any revenue nor profit
to the Group during the period from the respective dates of
acquisitions to 31 December 2010.

If the acquisitions in respect of items (a) and (b) had been

completed on 1 January 2010, there would not be any change
to the total Group's revenue and profit for the year.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

45.

WEEEER (&)

—E-EHEETZWE (&)

by REZZ—ZFLA ARRZZENE
NRIE] S Wk - MBS E = 75 W B Dynasty
Max Limited ([Dynasty | ) 2 ZpAZ A 25 -
I8 & R {8 4100,000,0007 7T ° Dynasty®
FTREBREZERNEER 2T FHIZ
B IR M B 2 7] #9180 % A% 7N # 5 - UR B8
DMERETK 2R —ZTF LA
K+ = A X8 &R {E6,000,000% T K&
94,000,000/ 7T » AN & B £ 55 — [ R U fE
AR B 1S Dynasty 2 4% &l # o 58 5 U B B
Dynastyl BAAEEE2EWNBE A E - 2IE UK
BERARBEEEAR.

EE—IERWEE A FTKkERE R AR
AR EE BERIABEZAAER
RE G R Tt - B IE WS EE 46,000,000
BTZEAB HERFBRAEZZFH
94,000,000/ st X (B B & B & A H Bk o

RESER LB RERE R BER W ARRIEY
EXB MHSENEBREAE_T—ZF
TZA=+—B BRI RBAREE T REM
WA 2k A o

@kb)BEYEBEEER - —ZTF—-A—H
FERK - B S B R A K s ) 48 B I R A (] 2



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued)
Acquisitions during 2009

()

(ii)

Acquisition of It REBZEHRNZEERA G ("BEZFH")

In April 2009, the Group entered into PRC mobile lottery
business for a total investment of HK$120,000,000
100 %
f=#FEE 6. The subsidiaries of &
the development of mobile value-added services for lottery

through acquiring registered capital in

Jdg E =

¥ = are engaged in

business in the PRC. The transaction has been completed in
August 2009. The vendor issued a guarantee to the wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company whereby the total profit
after tax of the subsidiaries of 2% & will not be less
than RMB20,000,000 for the year commencing on 1 April
2009 to 31 March 2010 (the “Guaranteed Profit”). The

Guaranteed Profit has been met in 2010.
Acquisition of BERBREFEZEEHMERLR A ("HHER")

On 28 October 2009, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company invested RMB91,000,000 in lottery ELP by
acquiring 80% registered capital in & . R is engaged
in the ELP and marketing business of lottery business in the
PRC including high frequency game. The transaction has
been completed in December 2009.

The above acquired business contributed turnover of
approximately HK$31,440,000 and profit of HK$14,683,000
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009. If
the above acquired businesses had occurred on 1 January

2009, the Group’s turnover would have been approximately
HK$1,284,214,000 and profit would have been approximately
HK$413,484,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009 .

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z
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AIEFEAANEB A RA31,440,0008 T2 &

SERE K 14,683,000/ 7T 2 & 7l

o fiaf L 3t Wi B 2 75

—FER=ZZTAF—A—BE4L AEXEE
RBE-_TTNAF+_A=1T—HLEFEZS
EREEHXB1,284,214,0005 7T » M % A B 49 &
413,484,000/ T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

45. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued) 45. WERREREK (8)
Acquisitions during 2009 (continued) —EENFETZWE (&)
(i) Details of the assets and liabilities (at fair value) (iii) WENEEFNERE (BALEE)FEW
acquired are as follows: T
Notes HK$ 000
Kt FET
Assets/(liabilities) acquired WiEEE,(AfE)
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - B Rkt 16 2,928
Intangible assets mEAE 20 59
Inventories TE 29
Trade receivables B E 5 8RR 12,732
Other receivables E {h fE YR IR 3,391
Cash and bank balances B e RIRITHESR 14,778
Trade payables ERE SRR (1,166)
Other payables and accruals H A 8 5 FRIE R B T RIE (11,217)
Borrowings BE (2,273)
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBEEE 25 (2,659)
Total fair value of identifiable net assets AR HEETECEAAE 16,602
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR 4 2 (8,437)
Goodwill [k 79 215,244
Total consideration settled in cash RIRE Tz BR(E 223,409
Net cash outflow in respect of the acquisitions — UWEEEIBZIRERHEFESMAT :
is analysed as follows:
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITEH 14,778
Cash paid BB E (223,409)
(208,631)

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

46. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED
PARTIES

(a)

Details of the Group's significant transactions with the
following related parties during the year are as follows:

46. BBH R 5 KRR

(a)

AEERAFEEL
X5 MEMT

SRR D ETTEXR

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Director: 55

Balance due from the Group JE WA & E B8 K 141 141

Related companies: ezl /NG
Sub-letting income AEBA 3,051 1,221
Balance due from the Group JE W 7N &= [ 4 K - 18,533

In the opinion of the Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, the above transactions were
entered into in the Group’s ordinary course of business
or at terms agreed by both parties. The balance due to
a director is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed
repayment term.

The balance due to a related company was unsecured,
bearing interest at the prime rate plus 2% per annum and
was fully repaid during the year.

During both years, compensation of key management
personnel represents Directors’ remuneration as stated
in note 10. The Directors’ remuneration is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance, responsibilities and experience of individuals
and market trends.

EX (BEBUFNTER)RA £
SIRASEB T X BET RRET W
FEZAFTETT - RN EZHAREER 2
BB I 4 45 T R A -

R AR SRR EER REEEH
KMN2% B RARFAERE-

RERMFER TE2EBASFMEMNT10
ilzEEZMe EEMemFHEE S

2REARE BERERARTSBES
BE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

47.

48.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year's presentation. The reclassification has no effect
on the Group's results and financial position for the current and
prior years.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2010 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements:

47.

48.

bEBETF
ETUEBRBFEEHNOBRUNAAFEZZ7
TR -EMDBHAEEAFERBEFEZE
BN BIRRT | E -

EEAERBE_FE-2F+-A=1+—H
IEFEERERZIBET  HEARZEARE
EEZEE

BEANBREATRES EEEHHAGCHE
HRTRBE-F-—FE+-A=+—ALE
MR AR R B B R PO R SRR 2 48T -
AR KRR :

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

RT5BEH
RZERERZ
BHBEEN

Revised HKAS 24, Related party disclosures

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

Improvements to HKFRS 2010

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of

operations and financial position.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]

ER G ERFE245% (KEFT)  BEALTHE

BEPBHHREENES. M IE

H_ T -TEFEMBERELER 2 B0E

R G ENF12RZ2ER] - FAEHR

1 January 2011

—F——%—A—FH
1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 July 2010 or
1 January 2011
—E—TFLHA—HK

—F——%—A—FH
1 January 2012
—T——_f—-H—H

AREBERIEFEHZFER]  FEN MR ERY
HEXRERBHZZE - BERAL EHA
RNZEER] AR RAEE SR REH AR E
BrReXxBERYBRAABREATE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E-Z—ZF+_A=+—HItFE

PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49. FEMEBEARZFHE

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2010 are as follows:

BARBMOT :

RARARRZZBE—ZTFEF+_A=+—HBHZ2EEMH

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRITRE
=L SE R ST 1A it B TEXBREXHBH HEMEARFE Fris B
REXCAPITAL Financial Group  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 197,400,856 Ordinary shares 100%
Limited RBREIHS in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
REBETREER 197,400,856f% '
BREEIETZEAR
REXCAPITAL Financial Hong Kong Investment holding in 25,000,000 Ordinary shares 100%
Investment Limited BB Hong Kong of HK$1 each
HEeBEEERAA REBETREER 25,000,000/% *
BREEIETZEAR
REXCAPITAL Asset Hong Kong Investment holding, 5,000,000 Ordinary shares 100%
Management Limited BB provision of advisory of HK$1 each
HREEEERRAA and fund management  5,000,0004%
services in Hong Kong BREEISTZ EBR
REBETRERR 12
R R E S EIERY
REXCAPITAL Corporate Hong Kong Arrangement of 2 Ordinary shares of 100%
Management Limited BB administration services HK$1 each
HECEEERRAA for group companies in 2 BEREENB T2 L REK
Hong Kong
REBREERNRRZH
TTE RS
REXCAPITAL Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong Money lending and 2,000,000 Ordinary shares of 100%
HREERRADA BB investment trading in HK$1 each
Hong Kong 2,000,000
REBETERK BREEIETZEAR
REEE
REXCAPITAL Securities Hong Kong Securities dealing and 150,000,000 Ordinary shares 100%
Limited BB margin financing in of HK$1 each
HWEFHARAA Hong Kong 150,000,0000% * &R EE 17
REBETESEER T2 BB
FRAEE
REXLot Investment PRC Investment holding HK$47,880,500 100%
(Guangzhou) Co Ltd H in the PRC 47,880,500/ 7T
BMERIRERR A R BEETREER
Shenzhen Sinodata PRC Provision of lottery RMB35,560,000 89.84%
Technology Co Ltd H machines and software AR #35,560,0007T

ARYIT BB B
ARAF

system in the PRC
R BERHEEERK
Bt R4
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE—ZE—ZF+_A=+—HILFE

49. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49. FEMEBEARZFHE (E)

(continued)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRITRE/
=L SRR LR i i B TEXBREXNE & A s B
I /u%%@%uﬂﬁﬁﬁk PRC Provision of maintenance RMB2,000,000 89.84%
BRA H service for lottery AR #2,000,0007T
machines in the PRC
RAPBEREYRREE
PR 75
Shenzhen Kingsail Software PRC Production of lottery RMB20,000,000 100%
Tech Co Ltd H machines in the PRC AR #20,000,0007T
RN & IR i RPBEEEYRHE
BRAA
REXLot Investment PRC Investment holding RMB30,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Co Ltd H in the PRC AR #30,000,0007C
RN THERFIRE R B TREER
BRAA
Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery PRC Provision of lottery RMB10,000,000 100%
Technology Co Ltd R printing service AR #10,000,0007T
LERERPERRBERER in the PRC
P AR B 42 7 3% ED il R 7%
Guangzhou Latech PRC Production of RMB 10,000,000 90%
Technology Co Ltd il lottery machines A #10,000,0007T
BMTEGRHMRBERA in the PRC
KA B EEYRE
Beijing Lohowin Marketing PRC Lottery distribution RMB 1,280,000 60%
Co Ltd H and marketing AR1,280,0007T
b REEA &E%iﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ business in the PRC
BRR R BEETY RALE R
L ES
BERERA®E LS PRC Provision of marketing RMB 10,000,000 80%
Rt ER R A H services for lottery AR #10,000,0007T
business in the PRC
R BERH®EREBH
3% R %5
RINTBFRREER D PRC Lottery distribution and RMB10,000,000 100%
i marketing business AR #10,000,0007T
in the PRC
R BE T RALA R
L ES
Bl fﬁ%;ﬂm& PRC Investment holding RMB 100,000 100%
BRA i in the PRC AR #100,0007C

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A 7]
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PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZEZ=Z

49.

MBEHRRKE (&)

—RFE+_H=+t—BLFE

TENBLRZFHE (8)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRTRAE
=L SRR LR i i B TEXBREXNE & A s B
Elottery Vision (Beijing) PRC Provision of mobile RMB1,000,000 50%*
Technology Co Ltd H value-added AR #1,000,00070
FBARAK (LR services for lottery
BRBERAT business in the PRC
P BB R R TR it
FHRIZERS
B EUSER Lﬂ& PRC Provision of mobile RMB4,000,000 50%*
BRA H value-added AR #4,000,0007T
services for lottery
business in the PRC
P BB A R it
FHRIZERS
RS PRC Provision of mobile RMB1,010,000 50%*
MERER AR H value-added AR #1,010,0007T
services for lottery
business in the PRC
R BB R R R B RE
FHIZERS
A0 5 T 8 PRC Provision of mobile RMB2,000,000 50%*
BABEER H value-added AR #2,000,00070
EERAF services for lottery
business in the PRC
RAPBEREEEBKRE
F L ERRTS
& These investee companies are regarded as subsidiaries as the Group * [ 7 &= (8] AT 22 ) Z%&ﬁ“ﬂz%f%&%@%@ﬁ 0

can exercise control over their financial and operating activities.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at 31

December 2010 and 2009 at any time during both years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion

of the Directors result in particulars of excessive length.

WHEARBRERHBER
R-E-—ZFER_ZFZNF+-_A=+—H %
B /B 2 R P 8 A E AL B R 9 R AR B E
ZIEEEAR-

ERINTEZRREIZFERAFEXRABEN

AEBEEFELTEBNZARAMNBRAR E
ERE REHMMBARZFBEFEREBAR
T e
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFFUBRE

The following is a summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the

Group for the five years ended 31 December 2010, which have been

NTAAEEBEE_T—TF+ _A=+—BLAAE
FEZFE BERBERE EDRRUBHRN

prepared on the basis set out in note 2 to the financial statements. H2RTH c EERE -
RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 December
HZ+-A=1t—-HLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-ZF ZTENF —ZTNE —ZTTtEHF —ZTRE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note) (Note)
(Hiat) (K1)
Turnover 1,614,328 1,272,069 1,173,000 412,661 144,746
Profit before taxation 680,131 450,237 342,215 220,010 41,633
Taxation (35,677) (34,082) (51,414) (26,369) (11,001)
Profit before non-controlling interests 7 £ 5 Al Vi ) 644,454 416,155 290,801 193,641 30,632
Non-controlling interests (8,438) 8,426 (23,160) (56,953) (19,462)
636,016 424,581 267,641 136,688 11,170
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-A=+—A8
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-Zf C—TThFE ZTTNF ZTTLFE ZITTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FHETT FETT FET
Total assets 4,108,975 3,791,475 3,348,203 2,605,574 1,146,197
Total liabilities (334,867) (344,804) (287,648) (164,171) (216,153)
Total equity

3,774,108

Note:  As a result of the change in accounting policy for turnover in 2008, the

figures for 2007 to 2006 have been restated for comparison purpose.

REXLot Holdings Limited fIZRAAAZR AR A F]

3,446,671

3,060,555

— =N

2,441,403

930,044

NFEEREREER 2 GTBOR Bk
TRNREF

ZETFELBTAELLE -
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